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The winds of the economy can be fickle. Blowing this way
and that. Which is why it's always good to have a finger to
the air. Things have been tough at times. But as always
things change and in time, the winds shift. You just have

to be able to anticipate the cyclical nature of the industry.

WORST OF TIMES

BEST OF TIMES

\;V/e have. And today, people are on the move again:

business travel is up, leisure travel is up, forecasts call
for the lodging industry to enjoy record-breaking profits

over the near future. And at Boykin, we have made the
right moves to put ourselves in the position to take

advantage of this new reality.










i
While travel was down, we invested our efforts and

|

funds into making improvements to our Aroperﬁes.

Building their valve. Now that travel is bdck up, the
|

hotel acquisitions market has heated up, as: well. We
\

I
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have been able to harvest some of our investment
)}
|
through disposition of certain non-strategic assets.
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OUT WITH THE}bLQ
! .

IN WITH THE NEW

A perfect example is the sale of Hotel 71 in Chicago
for nearly double our purchase price. The transaction
helped lower our debt. Additionally, selling off assets at
premium prices provides us the resources to make constant
improvements to our core focus: upscale, full-service hotels
in major metropolitan areas and stunning resorts on some

of the most beautiful beaches in the country.




We are here for either. Our impressive, full-service hotels,
many with fully-outfitted conference facilities, take care
of every need of the business traveler. Meanwhile, our
desirable locations in cities with major ottractions also

result in very happx leisure guests. The smiles and sighs

THERE IS WORK -— THERE IS PLAY
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of contentment grow all the more on the edge of the
surf at our beach resorts and hotel condos —as do our
revenues, we might add. It's simpfe, really. When people
aren’t kicking it into high gear, they're liable to be kicking
back and recharging. Our abiiity to provide the locations
that can accomodate a balanced life is what will keep us

moving steadily and surely onward.






IT’ S A CONSTANT BAL/ANCING ACT.
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Boykin Lodging Company will celebrate its tenth anniversary as o
public company in 2006. While still young, in many ways we are
older than our years. We have been through some of the best
of times in the lodging cycle - and some of the worst of times.
And we’d like to think that, as a company, we have gained

perspective during that period.

To us, it is all about balance. After weathering the tough periods,
the recovery of the travel market is well underway. Year over year,
RevPAR for the eighteen hotels owned and operated through
December 37 increased 7.1%, Over half of the RevPAR growth

was attributable to increases in average daily room rates ~ which
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is the most profitable form of business expansion. /ﬁ&nd industry
|

forecasts continue to project growth in occupancy, rates and

RevPAR in 2006 and 2007.

Timing ~ when do you buy and when do you sell? In 2005, as
!
investor appetite for quality properties soared, we opted fo sell

1
assets — selling during times of improvement in cash fléws. We sold

|
four properties for prices totaling over $147 million. | Early in the

|
i

|
yeor, we sold Hotel 71 in Chicago for over $95 million, netting o

nice gain to the company and our partners. We dlso sold the
French Lick Springs Resort and Spa for $25 million, representing

the culmination of our efforts over the course of several years to
|

bring gaming to the region. We exited from the Yakimc% property in
our continuing efforts to refine the portfolio. And fo close the year,

i
we sold the Hampton Inn in San Diego for $23 million, iat a gain to
I '

the company of $11.5 million. While we have looked at opportunities

)
to redeploy the capital we have raised through these asset sales,
I

the overheated market has kept our acquisition pace Jow and we
i

have used the capital to reduce indebtedness - so as opportunities
|

to acquire assets at affractive prices return to the markej}, we will be
poised to create the best results for shareholders. W}f‘u'/e EBITDA
and FFO have been negatively impacted in the short run by these
actions, we remain confident that over the long run fhe%e decisions
will prove beneficial. “’

During 2005, we also entered into a joint venture agir(_eemenf to
purchase a 65-unit resort in Marathon, Florida located in:‘i the Florida

Keys. The transaction was closed in early 2006. The \acquisition

I
i

adds inventory to our condo hotel pipeline and the Keys represents
the type of precious real estate, with high demand and significant
barriers to new supply, that we have been seeking. We will continue

to look for new opportunities to invest our disposition proceeds.

Redevelopment of the Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa is in the final
phase of construction. The new building will add a fine dining feature
to the resort in addition to a fitness facility. These features will
increase the service level of the resort, while the addition of an
onsite laundry will increase our profitability. We continue to receive
great feedback on the redevelopment plan and are anxious for our
condo owners to benefit from development of one of the finest hote!

properties on the Florida Gulf Coast.

We look forward to what a new year brings, and we .appreciate the

continued support of our shareholders. We will continue forward

_progress strengthening, shaping, evolving and executing while

being mindful of the lessons we've learned from the past.

AL

Robert W. Boykin
Chairman of the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer




{dollar amounts in thousands, except per share datal

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2005  December 31, 2004
Total revenues S 204,485 $ 203,901
Net income {loss) attributable to common shareholders _ S 24,971 $ 4,911)
Net income [loss} attributable to common shareholders per diluted share  § 1.40 $ 10.28)
Weighted overage number of diluted common shares outstanding 17,887,298 17,553,201

o 6,768 0,742
FFO per diluted common share 0.38 0.56

$ $
§ $
Preferred share dividends declared $ 4,751 $ 4,751
$ $
$ $
$ $

Funds from operations attributable to common shareholders (FFO)

26.25 26.25

447,805
254,550

Dividends declared per preferred share

Total assefs
Total shareholders’ equity

U1} FFO is a non-GAAP financial measure. See page 25 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for a reconciliation of FFO to net income.

Quarterly Market Prices and Common Share Distribution Information

Price Range Cash Distributions
. High Low Declared Per Share
Year Ended December 31, 2005:
First Quarter $ 976 $ 8.83 $ -~
Second Quarter $14.10 $ 9.36 § ~
Third Quarter . $15.48 $11.69 $ -
Fourth Quarter $13.13 $10.41 § ~
Year Ended December 31, 2004:
First Quarter § 9.86 $ 9.03 $ ~
Second Quarter $ 952 $ 7.00 $ —
Third Quarter . $ 874 $7.38 $ —
$ —

Fourth Quarter $ 919 $817
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K and the documents incorporated by reference herein contain statements that constitute forward-
looking statements. Those statements appear in a number of places in this Form 10-K and the documents
incorporated by reference herein and include statements regarding our intent, belief or current expectations or
those of our directors or officers with respect to:

+ Leasing, management or performance of the hotels;

» Our plans for expansion, conversion or renovation of the hotels;

» Adequacy of reserves for renovation and refurbishment;

* Qur financing plans;

+ Our continued qualification as a REIT under applicable tax laws;

» Our policies and activities regarding investments, acquisitions, dispositions, financings, conflicts of interest
and other matters;

» National and international economic, political or market conditions; and
» Trends affecting us or any hotel’s financial condition or results of operations.

You can identify the forward-looking statements by their use of forward-looking words, such as “believes,”
“expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” or “anticipates,” or the negative of
those words or similar words. You are cautioned that any such forward-looking statement is not a guarantee of
future performance and involves risks and uncertainties, and that actual results may differ materially from those
in the forward-looking statement as a result of various factors. The factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those expressed in a forward-looking statement include, among other factors, financial
performance, real estate conditions, execution of hotel acquisition or disposition programs, changes in local or
national economic conditions and their impact on the occupancy of our hotels, military action, terrorism,
hurricanes, changes in interest rates, changes in local or national supply and construction of new hotels, changes
in profitability and margins and the financial condition of our operators and lessees and other similar variables.

The information contained in this Form 10-K, in the documents incorporated by reference herein and in Boykin’s
periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission also identifies important factors that could cause
such differences.

With respect to any such forward-looking statement that includes a statement of its underlying assumptions or
bases, we caution that, while we believe such assumptions or bases to be reasonable and have formed them in
good faith, assumed facts or bases almost always vary from actual results, and the differences between assumed
facts or bases and actual results can be material depending on the circumstances. When, in any forward-looking
statement, we or our management express an expectation or belief as to future results, that expectation or belief is
expressed in good faith and is believed to have a reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the stated
expectation or belief will result or be achieved or accomplished.

PART I

Item 1. Business
(a) General Development of Business
About Boykin Lodging Company

Boykin Lodging Company (“Boykin’), an Ohio corporation, is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) that as of
March 2, 2006 owned interests in 21 hotels located throughout the United States. Boykin was formed and
completed an initial public offering in 1996. Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P., an Ohio limited partnership (the
“Partnership”), is the operating partnership that transacts business and holds the direct and indirect ownership
interests in our hotels. As of December 31, 2005, Boykin had an 85.5% ownership interest in, was the sole general
partner of and conducted all of its business through the Partnership.

During 2005, we announced that we are working with UBS Investment Bank to assist us with the identification
and evaluation of strategic alternatives for the Company. No decision has been made as to whether any
transaction or other corporate action will result from this effort, and there can be no assurance that any
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transaction or other action will result from this effort. We do not currently intend to make any further
announcements regarding the exploration of strateg1c alternatives unless and until the process is terminated or a
definitive agreement relating to a transactlon is executed.

(b) Financial Information About Indjustry Segments

All of Boykin’s operations are in the hotel industry.

(¢) Narrative Description of Business
Boykin’s Hotel Portfolio

As of March 2, 2006, our hotel portfolio included 21 full-service hotels, all of which compete in the upscale to
moderate price segment of the hospitality market All of our properties are operated by taxable REIT subsidiaries
of Boykin. Refer to Item 2(a) “Hotel Propertles” for a current listing of our hotels. Also refer to Item 7
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for discussion
surrounding the results of the hotels’ operat‘tions.

» Four hotels in which we owned an i‘nterest were sold during 2005, generating gross proceeds of
$147.25 million. These hotels mcludued Hotel 71, French Lick Springs Resort & Spa, the Clarion Hotel and
Conference Center and the Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World.

* We have previously completed two condominium hotel projects at our Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa
Our next condominium hotel prOJect the final component to the redevelopment of the Pink Shell, is
Captiva Villas. The project, which commenced construction in late 2005, is scheduled for completion in the
first quarter of 2007 at an estrrnated‘ cost of $26 million. Once completed, the building will contain 43
beach-front units. Similar to our other condominium hotel projects, the units in the new building will be
sold as condominiums, with the antfmpauon that the owners will put their unused room nights back to the

resort by contract.

« In January 2006, a joint venture in whrch we ‘own a 50% interest purchased the Banana Bay Resort &
Marina — Marathon, located in Marathon Florida for $12.0 million. The resort, which comprises 65
guestrooms on ten acres, was acqurred for potential redevelopment as a condo-hotel project.

* QOur two hotels in Melbourne, Florida, which have been closed since Hurricane Frances in September 2004,
are not expected to resume normal operations until late in the second quarter of 2006, subject to the
availability of labor and materials.

Competition and Other Economic Factbrs

Our hotels are located in developed areas that contain other hotel properties. The future occupancy, average daily
rate and RevPAR of any hotel could be matenally and adversely affected by an increase in the number of or
quality of the competitive hotel properties 1n its market area. Competition could also affect the quality and
quantity of future investment opportunities, or our ablhty to sell existing properties. Competitive factors include
brand affiliations, room rates offered 1nclud1ng those via internet wholesalers and distributors, customer service,
location and the condition and upkeep of each hotel in general and in relation to other hotels in their local
market. We have recently completed a detalled review of the capital needs of each of the hotels in our portfolio,
based on their current condition, their exrstlng competition, and the potential new supply in each of their markets.
We believe that, in order to maintain their icurrent competitive position, we will need to invest over $30 million
into the hotels, in addition to ordinary recu;rring capital expenditures.

As a portion of the lodging industry’s sales “are based upon business, commercial and leisure travel, changes in
general economic conditions, demographrcs‘ or changes in local business economics could affect these and other
travel segments. This may affect demand for rooms, which would affect hotel revenues.

Seasonality

Our hotels’ operations historically have been seasonal. The hotels located in Florida experience their highest
occupancy in the first quarter, while the remarmng hotels maintain their highest occupancy rates during the
second and third quarters. This seasonality pattem can be expected to cause fluctuations in our quarterly
operating results and cash flow received fror‘n hotel operations.
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Hotel Managers
As of March 2, 2006, the hotels in our portfolio were managed by the following entities:

Number

Manager of Hotels
Boykin Management Company Limited Liability Company (“BMC”) ..................... 20
Concord Hospitality Enterprises (“Concord”) ....... ... i i 1
21

BMC. Robert W. Boykin (our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer) and his brother, John E.
Boykin, control BMC. BMC has continued the over 40-year hotel operation and management business of Boykin
Management Company and its affiliates (the “Boykin Group”). The Boykin Group has capabilities in all phases
of development and management of hotel and resort properties. BMC currently manages 28 hotel properties
located throughout the United States, including the 20 hotels owned by us. BMC’s subsidiaries which provide
services to us include an interior design business and a hotel and restaurant food, beverage, supply and equipment
purchasing business.

BMC and its owners, who have a substantial interest in the Partnership, have interests that conflict with our
interests in connection with the structuring and enforcement of the management agreements and other
agreements between us and BMC and in connection with activities that may maximize profits for BMC without
necessarily benefiting us. The following factors align the interests of BMC and its owners with our interests to
address these conflicts of interest:

» BMC’s owners have retained their equity interests in the Partnership;

+ Our corporate charter documents require that our independent directors shall make all determinations to be
made on behalf of Boykin Lodging Company with respect to the relationships or opportunities that
represent a conflict of interest for any officer or director of Boykin Lodging Company;

» Any affiliate of the Boykin Group, including Robert W. Boykin and John E. Boykin, will conduct all hotel
acquisition, development and ownership activities only through Boykin Lodging Company, other than the
acquisition through inheritance of the Miami Hampton Inn by Robert W. Boykin and John E. Boykin, for
which the initial development by William J. Boykin, their father, was approved by our Board of Directors;

» BMC is entitled to receive incentive management fees with respect to certain hotels it manages for us if
the hotel operating performance exceeds benchmarks set forth in the terms of each management
agreement;

» A portion of BMC’s corporate-level senior executive team’s compensation is based upon the performance of
our hotels; and

» BMC has a deferred compensation plan for its corporate-level senior executives under which the value of
each award is based on, and fluctuates with, the value of our common shares.

Concord. Concord is a privately owned hotel investment and management company based in Raleigh, North
Carolina. Concord was formed to acquire, develop and manage both full and limited-service hotel properties.

Concord owns and operates hotels under franchise agreements with such franchisors as Marriott®, Radisson®,
Hilton®, Residence Inn® and Hampton Inn®.

Terms of the Management Agreements

BMC managed 19 of the 20 hotels that we had an ownership interest in as of December 31, 2005. The following
is a summary of the material terms of the BMC management agreements (the “Management Agreements”) and
is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Form of Management Agreement, which was filed as an exhibit to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on January 14, 2002.

The Management Agreements have the material terms described below:

o Duration/Termination. As of December 31, 2005, the Management Agreements had remaining terms
ranging from one to approximately eight years. We have the right to terminate 18 of the Management
Agreements upon 90 days’ advance written notice without having to pay any damages or a termination fee
or penalty. For the nineteenth hotel, if the management agreement is terminated by us prior to October 23,
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2006, the termination fee will be two times the actual management fees paid in calendar year 2005. If the
management agreement is termlnated by us after October 23, 2006, the termination fee will be equal to the
management fees paid for the prev1ous full calendar year.

* Management Fees. Most of the Management Agreements provide for base and incentive management
fees. The Management Agreements have base fees which range from 1.5% to 3% of total revenues. All of
the Management Agreements have incentive management fees payable to BMC based upon the applicable
hotel reaching specified financial performance standards.

*» Operating and Other Expenses. A\}ll of the Management Agreements provide that we are responsible for
all operating expenses associated with the hotels. In addition, we are responsible to either pay directly or
reimburse the operator for all othet expenses relating to the hotel including, without limitation, real estate
taxes, insurance premiums and deb”t service.

s Indemnification. All of the Management Agreements provide that we will hold the operator harmless
from and against all liabilities, loss%s, claims, damages, costs and expenses that arise from or in connection
with (a) the performance of the operator’s services under the agreement, (b) any act or omission (whether
or not willful, tortious, or negligent) by us or any third party, or (c¢) any other occurrence related to the
hotel, except for events that result from (i) the fraud, willful misconduct or gross negligence of the

operator or (ii) the breach by the (;“)perator of any provision of the agreement.

» Events of Default. Events of defanlt include (a) failure to make any payment required by the agreement,

(b) failure to observe or perform any term or provision after 30 days’ notice to cure, and (c) failure of
either party to perform in accordance with an applicable franchise agreement.

I
Joint Ventures with Third Party Hotel Operators

As of December 31, 2005, we had one joiht venture with a third party operator to align the hotel operator’s
economic interests with our economic intdrests.

‘ Boykin Ownership JV Ownership
Name of Joint Venture JV Partner Percentage Percentage Hotel Owned Under Joint Venture

BoyCon, L.L.C. Concord 50% 50% Meadowlands-Lyndhurst
: ; Courtyard by Marriott

Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws

Our hotels must comply with Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”) to the extent that
they are “'public accommodations” or commercral facilities” as defined in the ADA. Noncompliance with the
ADA could result in the imposition of ﬁnes or an award of damages to private litigants.

Under various federal, state and local laws, an owner or operator of real estate may be liable for the costs of
removal or remediation of certain hazardols or toxic substances on, under, or in the property. This liability may
be imposed without regard to whether the \owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of the
substances. Other laws impose on owners and operators certain requirements regarding conditions and activities
that may affect human health or the environment Failure to comply with applicable requirements could
complicate our ability to operate or sell an affected property and could subject us to monetary penalties, costs
required to achieve compliance and potential liability to third parties. We may be potentially liable for such costs
or claims in connection with the ownershrp and operation of our current hotels and hotels we may acquire in the
future.

Employees

As of March 2, 2006, we had 18 employees. These employees perform, directly or through the Partnership,
various acquisition, development, redeveloﬁment and corporate management functions. All persons employed in
the daily operations of the hotels are employees of the management companies that the taxable REIT subsidiaries
have contracted with to operate the hotels.:

|
|
|
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|
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers are elected and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors until their successors are
duly chosen and qualified, and are as follows:

Name Age  Position
Robert W. Boykin.................. 56  Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Richard C. Conti .................. 55 President and Chief Operating Officer
Shereen P. Jones................... 44  Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial and Investment Officer
Russ C. Valentine.................. 60  Senior Vice President, Acquisitions
Andrew C. Alexander............... 42 Senior Vice President and General Counsel

The following is a biographical summary of the business experience of our executive officers.

Robert W. Boykin has served as our Chief Executive Officer since our formation. He served as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of Boykin Management Company from 1985 until November 1996. He served as Boykin
Management Company’s Executive Vice President from 1981 until 1985.

Richard C. Conti has served as our Chief Operating Officer since May 1998. In January 2001, Mr. Conti was
promoted to President and Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining us, Mr. Conti was a Principal and Director
with Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. Mr. Conti was responsible for Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.’s hospitality consulting
practice in the Midwest and has been involved in the hospitality industry for over 25 years. Mr. Conti has worked
closely with many of the leaders in the industry and brings significant industry knowledge and contacts.

Shereen P. Jones has served as our Executive Vice President, Chief Financial and Investment Officer since
February 2002. She also serves as our Treasurer. Prior to joining Boykin, she was with Credit Suisse First Boston
in New York where she was Director and Global Head of Hospitality Investment Banking, spearheading the
development of its lodging investment banking practice. Previously, she spent seven years with Lehman Brothers,
serving most recently as Senior Vice President and head of its Real Estate, Lodging and Gaming Mergers &
Acquisitions practice. Prior to joining Lehman, she was Vice President, Corporate Finance, for Oppenheimer &
Co. and Kidder, Peabody & Co.

Russ C. Valentine joined us in June 1999 as our Senior Vice President, Acquisitions. Prior to joining us,

Mr. Valentine served as Senior Vice President of Acquisitions for American General Hospitality, a real estate
investment trust that was based in Dallas, Texas. Mr. Valentine played a significant role in American General’s
successful acquisition program from 1990 to 1998. For over 25 years, Mr. Valentine has worked for major
consulting, investment banking, and hotel organizations.

Andrew C. Alexander became our Vice President-Corporate Counsel in July 1997 and was promoted to Senior
Vice President and General Counsel in June 1999. From July 1995 until July 1997, Mr, Alexander served as Vice
President-Corporate Counsel of Renaissance Hotel Group, N.V., a publicly traded hotel company. From
September 1989 until July 1995, Mr. Alexander was an attorney at the law firm of Calfee, Halter & Griswold,
LLP.

There are no arrangements or understandings known to us between any executive officer and any other person
pursuant to which any executive officer was elected to office. There is no family relationship between any of our
directors or executive officers and any other director or executive officer.

Corporate Governance

We believe that the composition, structure and performance of our Board of Directors provide us a strong
corporate governance function and the partnership interest and share ownership of our officers and directors serve
to align the interests of our management with our shareholders’ interests. In addition, the terms of our
arrangements with BMC serve to minimize conflicts of interest and to align the interests of BMC with the
interests of Boykin and its shareholders.

Our articles of incorporation and corporate governance guidelines require that a majority of our directors be
independent. Under the New York Stock Exchange’s listing standards, a majority of our Board qualifies as
independent. Our articles of incorporation also require that any determination to be made by our Board in
connection with any matter presenting a conflict of interest for any officer of Boykin, or for any Boykin director
who is not an independent director, be made by our independent directors.
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We have made available on our website at www.boykinlodging.com copies of the charters of the audit,
compensation and corporate governance and nominating committees of the Board of Directors, our code of ethics
and our corporate governance guidelines. Copies of these documents are available in print to any shareholder who
requests them. Requests should be sent to“ Boykin Lodging Company, Guildhall Building, Suite 1500, 45 W.
Prospect Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio, 44115,‘Attn Investor Relations.

(d) Financial Information About Ge(‘)graphic Areas

All of our operations are conducted in thej\‘ United States.

(e) Available Information

|
We maintain a website at www.bovkinlodging.com. We make available free of charge on our website our filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such‘ material with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

If any of the following risks occur, our busmcss financial condition, operating results and cash flows could be
materially adversely affected. Additional rlsks and uncertainties not discussed herein may also impair our
operations.

Risks Related to the Hotel Industry

Public reaction to acts of terrorism or mzlztary action could affect our cash flow. We are subject to disruptions in
the lodging industry that would likely result from terrorist attacks (actual or threatened) or m111tary action
affecting the United States. The uncertamty that would result from these events would likely increase the public’s
reluctance to travel, which could adversely|affect our operations.

Competition, economic conditions and similar factors affecting us and the hotel industry generally could affect our
performance. Our hotels are subject to all operating risks common to the hotel industry. These risks include:

. Competmon for guests from other hotels based upon brand affiliations, room rates offered including those
via internet wholesalers and dlstnbutors customer service, location and the condition and upkeep of each
hotel in general and in relation to other hotels in their local market;

! . "
+ Adverse effects of general and local economic conditions;
« Dependence on demand from busine“‘ss and leisure travelers, which may fluctuate and be seasonal;
« Increases in energy costs, airline fares, and other expenses related to travel, which may deter travel;

+ Weather-related issues; |
» Impact of financial difficulties of the'airline industry and potential reduction in airline service on the
demand for our hotel rooms and the; collectlbﬂlty of our outstanding receivables from the airlines;

» Increases in operating costs attnbutable to inflation and other factors, such as energy and labor costs at the
hotels; and

« Overbuilding in the hotel industry, eépecially in individual markets.

The need to make unexpected capital expenditures could adversely affect our cash flow. Hotels require ongoing
renovations and other capital improvements, including periodic replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures
and equipment. If necessary capital cxpendltures exceed expectations, there can be no assurance that sufficient
sources of financing will be available to fund such expenditures. We may also acquire hotels in the future that
require significant renovation.

Hotel investments are generally illiquid, ancfi we may not be able to sell our hotels when it is economically
advantageous to do so. Hotel investments generally cannot be sold quickly. We may not be able to vary our
portfoho promptly in accordance with our strategles or in response to economic or other conditions. In addition,
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of \\1986 as amended, limit a REIT’s ability to sell its properties in some
situations when it may be economically advantageous to do so.
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Risks Related to Our Operations

The profitability of our hotels depends on the performance of the hotel management companies. The profitability
of our hotels depends largely upon the ability of the management companies to generate revenues at our hotels in
excess of their operating expenses. The failure of the management companies to manage the hotels effectively
would adversely affect our cash flow received from hotel operations. Before January 1, 2002, our cash flow
consisted primarily of lease payments from lessees. Our lessees were legally bound to make minimum lease
payments even when such payments exceeded the cash flow from the hotel. Since implementing our taxable
REIT subsidiary (“TRS”) structure on January 1, 2002, the responsibility and risks associated with making the
minimum lease payments has shifted to lessees owned by the Partnership. Therefore, we have effectively assumed
the risks associated with operating shortfails at our hotels.

Our performance is dependent upon the performance of BMC. BMC currently manages 20 of our hotels. We are
therefore dependent to a large degree on the operating performance of BMC. Changes in management at these
hotels or at other hotels in the future could result in temporary service disruptions at the affected hotels, which
could in turn affect their operating and financial performance.

We are subject to conflicts of interest involving our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Our Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, Robert W. Boykin, and his brother, John E. Boykin, own BMC and therefore derive
benefits from BMC’s management of 20 of our hotels. Accordingly, Mr. Boykin has and will continue to have
conflicts of interest with us. He had conflicts of interest in connection with our January 2002 TRS transaction and
in connection with the structuring of the management agreements for the hotels currently managed by BMC. He
will have similar conflicts on renewal of those agreements and in connection with future management agreements
and other transactions that we may enter into with BMC. Conflicts of interest may also arise in connection with
BMC’s management of our hotels. Under certain circumstances, actions taken and decisions made by BMC to
maximize its profits will not necessarily benefit us. Additionally, a subsidiary of BMC provides design services to
us for a fee and also receives a portion of the fees we pay to an independent purchasing agent. Mr. Boykin may
have conflicts of interest with respect to our procurement of design services and capital goods. Another subsidiary
of BMC provides purchasing to us for a fee. Additionally, the sale of certain of our hotels may result in different
and more adverse tax consequences to Mr. Boykin than would be experienced by Boykin and our public
shareholders, and he could seek to influence us not to sell a hotel even though that sale might otherwise be
financially advantageous to us and our public shareholders. Our articles of incorporation provide that our
independent directors are to make all determinations to be made on our behalf with respect to the relationships or
opportunities that represent a conflict of interest for any of our officers or directors.

The covenants in our credit agreements may restrict our range of operating activities, and we are subject to
refinancing risks. We have a senior secured credit facility that enables us to borrow up to $100.0 million, based
upon borrowing base availability, and a term loan with an original balance of $130.0 million which is secured by
certain of our hotel properties. Our secured credit facility requires us, among other things, to maintain a
minimum net worth, a coverage ratio of EBITDA to debt service, coverage of EBITDA to debt service and fixed
charges, and a maximum leverage ratio and places limitations on our common share distributions. There is no
assurance that we will be able to continue to meet the financial covenants of the secured credit facility. In
addition, our secured term loan limits our ability to sell certain hotel properties. These credit arrangements may
limit our ability to sell certain hotels whose disposition might be desirable for strategic or financial purposes.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to renew our credit arrangements upon maturity on favorable
terms or at all. Further, if we are unable to make payments on or to refinance indebtedness secured by our
properties, the properties could be foreclosed upon with a consequent loss to us of income and asset value.

A portion of our borrowings bear interest at a variable rate, as may other indebtedness we incur in the future.
Accordingly, increases in market interest rates could increase our debt service requirements, which could
adversely affect our cash flow.

We are subject to risks associated with development, redevelopment and acquisitions of hotels. New and
continued development projects and hotel acquisitions are subject to a number of risks, including:

» the availability of acceptable financing;
» competition with other entities for investment opportunities;
+ acquired properties’ failure to achieve anticipated operating results;

» construction costs of a property exceeding original estimates;
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» delays in construction and renovation projects;

« overruns with respect to the cost of improvements to bring acquired properties to the requisite standards;
and

« the expenditure of funds on, and the devotion of management time to, transactions that may not come to

fruition. ;
We are subject to the risks associated wzth investments through our joint ventures. Any joint venture investment
involves risks such as the possibility that the co-venturer may seek relief under federal or state insolvency laws, or
have economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our business interests or goals. While the
bankruptcy or insolvency of our co-venturer generally should not disrupt the operations of the joint venture, we
could be forced to purchase the co- venturer s interest in the joint venture or the interest could be sold to a third
party. Additionally, we have a joint venture in which we have a non- controlling interest and we may enter into
similar joint ventures in the future. If we do not have control over a joint venture, the value of our investment
may be affected adversely by a third party‘; that may have different goals and capabilities than ours. It may also be
difficult for us to exit a joint venture that we do not control after an impasse. In addition, a joint venture partner
may be unable to meet its economic or other obligations and we may be required to or find it necessary to fulfill
those obligations.

Obligations imposed by our franchise agreemenis could affect us adversely. Most of our hotels are subject to
franchise or license agreements. The continuation of a franchise or license agreement is generally subject to
specified operating standards. Action or macnon on our part or by any of our hotel managers could result in our
failure to meet those standards, which could result in the loss of the franchise. A franchisor also could condition
the continuation of a franchise on the coﬂpletion of capital improvements that we determine are too expensive or
otherwise unwarranted in light of general economlc conditions or the operating results or prospects of the affected
hotel. In that event, we may elect to allow the franchise agreement to lapse. In any case, the loss of a franchise
agreement could have a material adverse effect upon the operations or the underlying value of the hotel covered
by the agreement because of the loss of associated name recognition, marketing support and centralized
reservation systems provided by the franchlsor or because of penalties payable upon early termination of the
agreement. Additionally, the franchise agreements may place restrictions on the transfer or sale of assets or make

such transfers or sales economically infeasible.

Our insurance may not be adequate to cover certain risks. We continue to carry comprehensive liability, fire,
flood, earthquake, terrorism and business interruption policies that insure us against losses within policy
specification and insurance limits that we beheve are reasonable. There are certain types of risks, generally of a
catastrophic nature, that may be umnsurable or are not economlcally insurable or certain coverages that we
currently carry may become uneconomlcal or unavailable in the future. Should an uninsured loss or a loss in
excess of insured limits occur, we could lose our investment in the affected hotel as well as the anticipated future
cash flow from that hotel, while remainin ‘obhgated for any mortgage indebtedness or other financial obligations
related to that hotel.

The costs of complying with laws and regulatzons could adversely affect our cash flow. Our hotels must comply
with Title IIT of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”) to the extent that they are “public
accommodations” or “commercial facﬂltles” as defined in the ADA. Noncompliance with the ADA could result
in the imposition of fines or an award of damages to private litigants. If changes in these laws involve substantial
expenditures or must be made on an accelerated basis, our cash flow could be adversely affected.

Under various federal, state and local lawsi; an owner or operator of real estate may be liable for the costs of
removal or remediation of certain hazardous or toxic substances on, under, or in the property. This liability may
be imposed without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of the
substances. Other laws impose on owners and operators certain requirements regarding conditions and activities
that may affect human health or the env1r6nment Failure to comply with applicable requirements couid
complicate our ability to operate or sell an'affected property and could subject us to monetary penalties, costs
required to achieve compliance and potent1a1 liability to third parties. We may be potentially liable for such costs
or claims in connection with the ownershlp and operation of our current hotels and hotels we may acquire in the
future. We have not been notified by any governmental authority of, nor are we aware of, any material
noncompliance, liability or claim relating t(H) hazardous or toxic substances or other environmental matters in
connection with any of our hotels. Nonetheless, it is possible that material environmental contamination or

conditions exist, or could arise in the future, in the hotels or on the land upon which they are located.
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We have and will continue to incur costs for systems, staffing and third party services in maintaining compliance
with federal laws and regulations addressing corporate governance issues, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, and with the listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange.

We bear the risk of the timely completion of the Captiva Villas project. 1In each sales contract for the sale of a
Captiva Villas unit, Captiva Villas Development LLC, our consolidated subsidiary and the developer of Captiva
Villas, guarantees that it will complete construction of the condominium unit within two years following the date
of the sales contract unless such failure is due to circumstances beyond the control of the developer which
constitute impossibility of performance under Florida law. The first sales contract for a Captiva Villas unit was
entered into in July of 2004. Twenty-one of the outstanding contracts were entered into in 2004 and six were
entered into in the first quarter of 2005. Currently, the developer anticipates that the project will be substantially
complete in the first quarter of 2007. The developer has potential liability to purchasers whose units are not
completed within the two year time period. A purchaser could make a claim for damages and rescission of their
sales contract.

We may fail to qualify as a REIT and we may incur tax liability as a result. Commencing with our taxable
year ended December 31, 1996, we have operated as a REIT under the Code. The federal income tax laws
governing REITs are complex. The determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within
our control may affect our ability to continue to qualify as a REIT. In addition, no assurance can be given that
legislation, regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions will not significantly change the rules
applicable to us with respect to our qualification as a REIT or the federal income tax consequences of such
qualification. :

If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we would not be allowed a deduction for distributions
to our shareholders in computing our taxable income and would be subject to federal income tax (including any
applicable alternative minimum tax) on our taxable income at regular corporate rates. Unless we are entitled to
relief under certain Code provisions, we also would be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four taxable
years following the year during which REIT qualification was lost. As a result, the cash available for distribution
to shareholders, including the holders of preferred shares, could be reduced or eliminated for each of the years
involved.

We may be subject to the adverse effect of REIT distribution requirements. We intend to continue to make
distributions to our shareholders to comply with the requirement that we distribute to our shareholders each year
at least 90% of our net taxable income (excluding any net capital gain). Our income consists primarily of our
share of the income of the Partnership. Qur cash available for distribution consists primarily of cash distributions
from the Partnership. Differences in timing between taxable income and receipt of cash available for distribution
and the seasonality of our hotels could require us, through the Partnership, to borrow funds on a short-term basis
in order to meet the distribution requirement or to liquidate investments on disadvantageous terms. In certain
cases, dividends paid during the immediately subsequent year may be applied to the prior year’s dividends paid
deduction; however, an excise tax may be applicable based on the timing of such distributions,

Our ownership limit may discourage takeover attempts. In order to maintain our REIT status our articles of
incorporation limit ownership of our common shares and preferred shares. In order for us to maintain our
qualification as a REIT, not more than 50% in value of our outstanding shares may be owned, directly or
indirectly, by five or fewer individuals. Our articles prohibit ownership of more than 9% of the common shares
and ownership of more than 9% of any class of preferred shares by any single shareholder, with certain
exceptions. Accordingly, a holder of depositary shares may be prohibited from increasing his or her holdings of
depositary shares to the extent such shares represent more than 9% of the preferred shares. Our Board of
Directors may waive this restriction if evidence satisfactory to it and to our tax counsel is presented showing that
ownership in excess of this limit will not jeopardize our status as a REIT. Generally, prohibiting any shareholder
from owning more than 9% of the common shares or of any class of preferred shares may discourage a change in
control of our company or limit the opportunity for shareholders to receive a premium for their shares that may
otherwise exist. We also have a shareholder rights plan that may have the same effects.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None



Item 2. Properties
(a) Hotel Properties

As of March 2, 2006, we owned interests m the following 21 hotel properties:

Number
Property of Rooms Location
Doubletree Portland, Lloyd Center. . .........ccoviiiiiinn.nn.. 476 Portland, OR
Doubletree Sacramento ............ S 448 Sacramento, CA
Doubletree Omaha Downtown .. .... ............................ 414 Omaha, NE
Doubletree Hotel & Executive Meetiﬁg Center - Berkeley Marina . . . . 369 Berkeley, CA
Doubletree Boise Riverside ......... . ... . i, 304 Boise, ID
Doubletree Colorado Springs........ o e 299 Colorado Springs, CO
Doubletree San Antonio............ ‘ ............................ 290 San Antonio, TX
Cleveland Airport Marriott ......... ............................ 375 Cleveland, OH
Buffalo Marriott .................. e e e e 356 Buffalo, NY
Columbus North Marriott . ......... “ ............................ 300 Columbus, OH
Meadowlands-Lyndhurst Courtyard by Marriott . ................... 227 Lyndhurst, NJ
High Point Radisson. ......... ... 251 High Point, NC
Radisson Suite Beach Resort - Marco HIsland ...................... 233 Marco Island, FL
Radisson Hotel & Suites Kansas Clty City Center ................ 388 Kansas City, MO
Holiday Inn Crabtree . .. ... ..t i 176 Raleigh, NC
Embassy Suites Southfield. ......... e 239 Southfield, MI
Melbourne Hilton Oceanfront . ... ... e 118 Melbourne, FL
Best Western Fort Myers Island Gate\%vay Hotel ................... 157 Fort Myers, FL
Melbourne Suites Beach Resort ... .. e e 208 Melbourne, FL
Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa ... .. ‘ ............................ 178 Fort Myers, FL
Banana Bay Resort & Marina - Marathon. .. .....ooovenennenninn.. __ 65 Marathon, FL

5,871

(b) Office Space

Pursuant to a shared services and office sp%ce arrangement, we were reimbursed approx1mately $13,382 per
month in 2005 from BMC and its subsidiaries for the right to use certain office space located in Cleveland, Ohio

and receive certain related services.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The nature of our operations exposes us tothe risk of claims and litigation in the normal course of business.
Although the outcome of the described rnatter cannot be determined, management does not expect the ultimate
resolution of this matter to have a matenal\‘ adverse effect on our financial position, operations or liquidity.

On or about September 4, 2004, Hurncane‘ Frances struck the east coast of Florida and damaged the Melbourne
Hilton Oceanfront and the Melbourne Quahty Suites (now known as Melbourne Suites Beach Resort) hotels,
owned by the Partnership. The Par“cnershlp\lmmedlately reported the losses to its primary insurers and Liberty
Mutual Fire Insurance Company (“leerty Mutual”), its excess property insurer. The Partnership submitted
sworn proofs of loss to Liberty Mutual for 5 total claim amount in excess of $32.9 million. Of the total claim
amount, $10.9 million has been paid by the Partnership’s primary carriers. Despite the Partnership’s best efforts
to negotiate for over fourteen months from jthe date of the hurricane, Liberty Mutual and the Partnership have
been unable to reach a settlement of the clalm and Liberty Mutual has failed to advance any sums pursuant to
the claim.

On November 16, 2005, the Partnership ﬁlcj:d a complaint against Liberty Mutual in the Court of Common Pleas,
Cuyahoga County, Ohio, entitled Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P. vs. Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company,
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12Case No. CV 05 577457. The case was removed to the United States District Court, Northern District of
Ohio, Eastern Division, Case No. 1:05¢cv2949. The action is for breach of contract, declaratory judgment and
breach of duty of good faith and fair dealing in insurance claims handling and seeks compensatory damages in the
amount of approximately $26.0 million and punitive damages.

On January 18, 2006, Liberty Mutual filed a Defendant’s Answer and Counterclaim. The Partnership filed a
Reply to Counterclaim on February 7, 2006. The initial case management conference is scheduled for March 22,
2006.

The Company is not presently subject to any other material litigation nor, to the Company’s knowledge, is any
other litigation threatened against the Company, other than routine actions for negligence or other claims and
administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which are expected to be covered
by liability insurance and all of which collectively are not expected to have a material adverse effect on the
liquidity, results of operations or business or financial condition of the Company.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered
by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
(a) Market Information
Our common shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “BOY.” The following table

sets forth for the indicated periods the high and low sales prices for the common shares and the cash distributions
declared per share:

__Price Range  (yqh Distributions
High Low Declared Per Share
Year Ended December 31, 2004:
First Quarter .. ...ttt $ 98 $9.03 —
Second Quarter............ it P $952 $7.00 —
Third QUarter .........ooui it e $874 §$7.38 —
Fourth Quarter .. ... ... i $9.19 $8.17 —
Year Ended December 31, 2005:
First Quarter .. ...ttt e $ 976 § 8.83 —
Second QUATET . . ...\ttt $14.10 $ 9.36 —
Third QUarter ........ ..ottt $15.48  $11.69 —
Fourth Quarter ... ... $13.13  $10.41 —

(b) Shareholder Information

As of March 2, 2006, there were 707 record holders of our common shares, including shares held in “street
name” by nominees who are record holders, and approximately 6,300 beneficial owners.

In order to comply with certain requirements related to our qualification as a REIT, our charter limits the
number of common shares that may be owned by any single person or affiliated group to 9% of the outstanding
common shares.

(¢) Dividend and Distribution Information

The declaration and payment of future dividends related to our common shares is at the discretion of our Board
of Directors and depends on, among other things, our receipt of cash distributions from the Partnership, our
results of operations, level of indebtedness and restrictions imposed by our lenders, any contractual restrictions,
the annual dividend requirements under the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, economic conditions

11




and other factors considered relevant by our Board. The level of our cash dividends is determined by the Board of
Directors in light of our cash needs, including our requirements for investing and financing activities and other
anticipated cash needs. In 2006, we expect that common share dividends sufficient to satisfy the distribution
requirements relating to 2005 REIT taxab%e income will be made.

(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following sets forth the securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2005: :
‘ Number of securities

remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders. . ... 824,139% $11.30 492,149
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders. . ................... e None None None
Total ......oooieeii e 824,139 $11.30 492,149

|
* All 824,139 options are exercisable as of December 31, 2005.
i
(e) Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

(f) Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities

Not applicable.

(g) Purchases of Equity Securities by: the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
1

None.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following tables set forth selected historical operating and financial data for Boykin.

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and all of the financial statements and notes thereto included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The financial data related to 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is not directly comparable
to 2001 as a result of our implementation of TRS structures in 2002. Subsequent to the transactions, our financial
results include the operating results of the hotels under the TRS structure whereas in prior years, only lease
revenue was recorded for the properties.
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BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

SELECTED HISTORICAL OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
OPERATING DATA:

Hotel, lease and other operating revenue .......... $204,485 $ 196,360 $176,685 $185,360 $ 50,567
Revenues from condominium development and

unitsales ........... ... .. ... . ... e — 7,541 36,883 8,715 —
Total revenues . ....oovvinee e, 204,485 203,901 213,568 194,075 50,567
Property taxes, insurance, hotel operations, general

andother ...... ... ... . o, 175,717 168,270 153,102 148,691 13,828
Cost of condominium development and unit sales . . —_ 5,509 24,645 6,474 —
Real estate related depreciation and amortization. . . 22,291 22,217 24,067 21,398 20,404
Impairment of real estate . ...................... 5,500 — — — 10,500
Costs associated with termination of leases ........ — — — — 14,575
Operating income (loss) ....................... 977 7,905 11,754 17,512 (8,740)
Other inCOmMe. . ..o i 2 8 28 52 3
Interest INCOME . .. ..t nt i 1,106 377 597 123 303
Interest expense. .. ... ... (11,586)  (13,629) (14,923) (18,068) (19,639)
Amortization of deferred financing costs .......... (1,540) (1,367)  (1,906)  (2,105)  (1,129)
Federal income taxes ..................cvn... (75) — — — —
Minority interest in (earnings) loss of joint ventures

and operating partnership..................... (582) 1,845 2,025 1,175 2,521
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint

ventures including gain on sale ................ 11,343 (814) (870)  (2,040) 589
Loss before gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets,

discontinued operations and cumulative effect of :

change in accounting principle ................ (355) (5,675)  (3,295)  (3,351) (26,092)
Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets ............ 11,387 3,175 954 (16) 240
Income (loss) before discontinued operations and

cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle .......... ... ... .. ... ... 11,032 (2,500)  (2,341)  (3,367) (25,852)
Discontinued operations, net of minority interest . . . 18,690 2,340 (1,085) 2,996 (3,345)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle ...... ... ... ... . ... 29,722 (160)  (3,426) (371) (29,197)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,

net of minority interest....................... — — — — (373)
Net income (10SS) ..o, 29,722 (160)  (3,426) (371) (29,570)
Preferred dividends .. ........... ... ... ... ... .. (4,751) (4,751)  (4,751)  (1,109) —

Net income (loss) attributable to

common shareholders .. ............ ... ... ... .. $ 24971 $§ (4911) $ (8,177) $ (1,480) $(29,570)
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EARNINGS PER SHARE:

|
Net income (loss) attributable to commPn
shareholders before discontinued operations and
cumulatlve effect of change in accountmg principle:

Diluted ......... ...

Net income (loss) attributable to common
shareholders before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle:

Diluted . ..... ... .

Net income (loss) attributable to common
shareholders:

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding:

HISTORICAL BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Investment in hotel properties, net ... .. P
Assets related to discontinued operatlons net
Total assets
Total debt ... ... . .
Liabilities of discontinued operations ...............
Minority interest .................... b
Shareholders’ equity

OTHER DATA:

Net cash provided by operating activities............
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . .
Net cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancing activities . . .
Cash dividends declared — common shares..........

Weighted average number of common shares and
units outstanding:

14

2005

2004

Year Ended December 31,

2003

2002

2001

$ 036
$ 035

$ 106
$ 1.04

$ 142
$ 140

$375,117
447,805
138,529
14,723
254,550

$ 25,378
$ 46,879
$(69,488)

20,285
20,605

$  (0.42)
$  (0.42)

$ 013
$ 0.13

$  (0.28)
$  (0.28)

$  (0.28)
$  (0.28)

17,426
17,583

$ 383,360
29,423
477,380
199,985
2,369
10,038
227,448

$ 40,297
$ 65,870

o5

(041) §
(0.41) §

o

©

(0.06) $
(0.06) $

&3

©“n

0.47) $
(0.47) $

&5

o2

(0.47) $
(0.47) $

o3

17,336
17,470

$381,320 §
112,964
591,292
282,019
22,682
11,495
231,541

$ 4,024 §
$(25,634) $

(0.26)
(0.26)

0.17
0.17

(0.09)
(0.09)

(0.09)
(0.09)

17,248
17,383

346,445
149,766
575,531
241,082

43,697

14,202
240,291

43,257
(16,054)

$(106,659) § 10,170 $ (5,360)
$ 3174 § 6,297 §$ 19,030

20,144
20,271

20,055
20,188

19,966
20,101

$ (1.51)
$ (1.51)

$ (0.19)
$ (0.19)

oo

(1.70)
(1.70)

o

w5

(1.72)
(1.72)

o

17,176
17,281

$369,328
152,956
559,218
285,226
38,037
15,821
202,646

$ 36,432
$(17,187)
$(19,810)

18,467
18,572




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

Boykin is a REIT that was formed and completed an initial public offering in 1996 to continue and expand the
nearly 40-year history of hotel ownership, acquisition, redevelopment and repositioning activities of its
predecessors, Boykin Management Company and its affiliates. The Partnership is the operating partnership that
transacts business and holds the direct and indirect ownership interests in Boykin’s hotels. As of March 2, 2006,
Boykin had an 85.5% ownership interest in, is the sole general partner of and does all its business through the
Partnership.

Since our initial public offering, we have raised capital through a combination of common and preferred share
issuances, various debt financings, capital from strategic joint venture partners and cash flow generated from
operations.

At the end of 2005, we owned interests in 20 hotels containing a total of 5,820 guestrooms located in 13 states.
As a result of the acquisition of the Banana Bay Resort & Marina - Marathon and the withdrawal of certain
individual units from the rental pool at the Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa, as of March 2, 2006, we owned
interests in 21 hotels containing 5,871 guestrooms located in 13 states.

Critical Accounting Policies

The critical accounting policies which we believe are the most significant to fully understand and evaluate our
reported financial results include the following:

 [nvestment in Hotel Properties — Hotel properties are stated at cost, net of any impairment charges, and are
depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from ten to 35 years for
buildings and improvements and three to 20 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment.

We review our hotel properties for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value of the hotel properties may not be recoverable. Events or circumstances that may cause a
review include, but are not limited to, adverse changes in the demand for lodging at the properties due to
declining national or local economic conditions, new hotel construction in markets where the hotels are
located or changes in the expected holding period of the property. When such conditions exist,
management performs an analysis to determine if the estimated undiscounted future cash flows from
operations and the proceeds from the ultimate disposition of a hotel property are equal to or exceed its
carrying value. If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an adjustment to reduce the carrying amount to the related hotel property’s estimated fair market
value is recorded and an impairment loss recognized.

In 2003, we recorded an impairment charge of $5.5 million related to a property for which we reduced
our intended holding period. In 2004 and 2003, we recorded impairment charges of $4.3 million and

$2.8 million related to the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center and Holiday Inn Minneapolis West, respectively,
as a result of changes in management’s intended holding periods of the properties. Pursuant to the terms
of the joint venture which owned the Holiday Inn Minneapolis West, over 40% of the charge was
allocable to the joint venture’s minority interest partner. As of December 31, 20035, we did not believe
that there were any factors or circumstances indicating impairment of any other of our investments in
hotel properties.

We estimate the fair market values of our properties through a combination of comparable property sales,
replacement cost and cash flow analysis taking into account each property’s expected cash flow generated
from operations, holding period and ultimate proceeds from disposition. In projecting the expected cash
flows from operations of the asset, we base our estimates on future projected earnings before interest
expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, and deduct expected capital
expenditure requirements. We then apply growth assumptions to project these amounts over the expected
holding period of the asset. Our growth assumptions are based on estimated changes in room rates and
expenses and the demand for lodging at our properties, as impacted by local and national economic
conditions and estimated or known future new hotel supply. The estimated proceeds from disposition are
judgmentally determined based on a combination of anticipated cash flow in the year of disposition,
terminal capitalization rate, ratio of selling price to gross hotel revenues and selling price per room.

If actual conditions differ from those in our assumptions, the actual results of each asset’s future
operations and fair market value could be significantly different from the estimated results and value used
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in our analysis. Our operating results are also subject to the risks set forth under Items 1A and 7 of this
Form 10-K. ‘!

s Revenue recognition |

Hotel revenues - Hotel revenues, 1anludmg room, food, beverage and other hotel revenues, are recognized
as the related services are delivered. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed and an allowance for
potential credit losses is provided agamst the portion of accounts receivable that is estimated to be
uncollectible. :

Lease revenue — Percentage lease fevenue is based upon the room, food and beverage and other revenues
of our hotels.

Hotel Condominium revenues —

Percentage of completion - In;2003, we began recognizing revenue related to the White Sand Villas
project under the percentage of completion method. Condominium project revenues and expenses are
recognized on the percentage ¢ of completion method upon satisfaction of the followmg criteria:

(a) construction is determined to be beyond a preliminary stage, (b) the buyer is not entitled to a
refund except for nondelivery of the unit, (c) sufficient units are under binding contract to assure the
entire property will not revert 'to rental property, (d) sales prices have been determined to be
collectible, and (e) aggregate: ‘sales proceeds and costs can be reasonably estimated. In 2003 and
2004, revenue was recogmzed“under percentage of completion accounting as the White Sand Villas
project had satisfied the criteria outlined above. Percentage of completion accounting involves the use
of estimates for the relation of revenues on sold units to total revenues of the project and for total
cost of the project. The sales of all of the 91 available units closed in 2004, and the proceeds had
been collected; therefore, all project revenues were recognized by December 31, 2004, White Sand
Villas unit owners contract with the resort to allow their unused room nights to be rented out by the
resort as hotel rooms. At December 31, 2005, the Captiva Villas project was in the preliminary
stages.

Sales of condominium units — During 2001, we completed a renovation of a 60-unit tower at the Pink
Shell Beach Resort. These renovated units were sold as Sanibel View Villas Condominiums; the
revenue related to the sales was recorded upon closing of the sales. As of December 31, 2003, we
had closed on the sale of all 59 of the available units within the tower and all of the unit owners had
contracted with us to allow their unused room nights to be rented out as hotel rooms.

The related gross rental income generated by the units put back to the resort by contract is recorded
by the resort and included in hotel revenues within the consolidated financial statements. Under the
terms of their contracts, a percentage of the gross rental income of each unit is to be remitted to the
respective unit owner. The remitted amounts are recorded as expenses within the property taxes,
insurance and other line of the consolidated financial statements.

Insurance Recoveries — Since 2003, we have had several significant open insurance claims for water
infiltration remediation and hurrlcane damage.

We record insurance recoveries in an amount equal to the losses recorded by the property being covered
as the losses are recognized until such time as those recoveries are deemed not probable or reasonably
estimable. Amounts in excess of those losses are recognized to the extent that cash has been received or
a settlement has been reached and the amount is not considered to be an advance on future losses.
Business interruption recoveries aré reflected as other hotel revenues within the consolidated financial
statements. Property insurance recoveries are reflected as gain on sale/disposal of assets within the
consolidated financial statements. Fees due to service providers in connection with property insurance
recoveries are reflected as reductions in the gain recognized. Fees due related to business interruption
insurance recoveries are reflected as corporate general and administrative expenses within the
consolidated financial statements.

As other property insurance claims are filed for repair work done at the properties, we record estimated
recoveries to offset the costs incurred, less appropriate deductibles.

o Income Tax Valuation Allowance. ppon the effective date of the establishment of Boykin’s taxable REIT
subsidiaries (“TRSs”), the subsidiaries became subject to federal and state income taxes. Boykin’s TRSs
account for income taxes in accordat)ce with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
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Taxes.” As of December 31, 2005, Boykin had a deferred tax asset of approximately $14.3 million, prior to
any valuation allowance, related to the assumption of the retained deficit of Westboy as well as the
operating losses of the TRSs and their subsidiaries. Boykin has recorded a 100% valuation allowance
against this asset due to the uncertainty of realization of the deferred tax asset thus no provision or benefit
from income taxes is reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 to Boykin Lodging Company’s Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Financial Condition
December 31, 2005 Compared to December 31, 2004

Included in accounts receivable as of December 31, 2004 is $4.7 million of property damage and business
interruption insurance recoveries related to the two Melbourne properties closed since Hurricane Frances struck
the area in September 2004. The amounts were collected in full during 2005.

Included in restricted cash as of December 31, 2005 are $22.7 million of funds from the sale of the Hampton Inn
San Diego Airport/Sea World which were held by a third party intermediary for potential use in a like-kind
exchange pursuant to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code.

As a result of the sale of Hotel 71 in March 20035, we received approximately $23.5 million from the
unconsolidated joint venture that owned the hotel. A portion of the funds was used to repay the then outstanding
amount on our secured credit facility. In connection with the repayment of the debt associated with the property,
$1.75 million of previously restricted cash was released.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the assets and liabilities of the French Lick
Springs Resort & Spa, the Clarion Hotel & Conference Center and the joint venture which owned and leased out
the Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World as of December 31, 2004 have been classified as discontinued
operations in the accompanying financial statements. As such, the only material changes in our financial condition
as a result of the disposal of the hotels in 2005 has been the removal of these segregated assets and liabilities and
the receipt of the cash.

In June 2005, we repaid the outstanding balance on the term note that was scheduled to mature in July 2003.
The outstanding balance of the term note as of December 31, 2004 was approximately $91.1 million. The note
was repaid using $40.0 million of funds drawn from the credit facility (approximately $6.4 million outstanding as
of December 31, 2004), funds previously restricted for payment of capital expenditures, insurance, interest and
real estate taxes pursuant to the terms of the note, and cash on hand.

Results of Operations
The operating results of the properties sold in 2005, 2004 and 2003 are reflected in the financial statements as
discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Results of Operations Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to 2004
Total revenues from continuing operations increased to $204.5 million in 2005 from $203.9 million in 2004.

» Hotel revenues increased $8.3 million from $196.0 million in 2004 to $204.3 million in 2005 as a result of
the following:

» An approximate 6.8% increase in revenue per available room (“RevPAR™) from 2004 for the 17
consolidated hotels which were open and operated under the TRS structure for both full years of 2005
and 2004. The increase in RevPAR was the result of an increase in occupancy levels of 1.9 points
combined with a 3.7% increase in the average daily rate;

» An $8.0 million decrease in revenue contribution from the two Melbourne, Florida properties as a result
of their closure after Hurricane Frances struck in early September, 2004; and

+ The inclusion of approximately $6.7 million in 2005 versus $2.3 million in 2004 of business interruption
insurance recoveries within other hotel revenues related to (a) a remediation project at a property which
left rooms out of service during 2003, 2004 and 2005 and (b) the closure of the two Melbourne
properties.
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« Revenues from condominium develepment and unit sales totaled $7.5 million in 2004 as a result of the
completion of the White Sand Villas development project during 2004. There was no activity during 2005
which resulted in the recognition of revenue related to condominium development and unit sales.

Hotel operating expenses

» In 2005, we incurred total hotel operating expenses, which include hotel departmental expenses, indirect
expenses and management fees, of $147.4 million. The gross operating profit of these hotels for the periods
owned and operated under a TRS totaled 27.9% in 2005 versus 26.0% for 2004. A significant component of
the increased margin is the increase in the recognition of business interruption insurance recoveries during
2004 within hotel revenues. Excluding the business interruption amounts from 20035 and 2004 and the
operating results of the two Melbourne properties from 2004, hotel operating profit margins for the portfolio
showed an increase to 26.1% from 25.1% in 2004. Another contributor to the margin increase is the
stabilization of the Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa upon completion of the White Sand Villas
condominium tower, as well as the conmbunon from the additional rooms generated by the development
project. ‘

Property Taxes, Insurance and Other

» Total expenses related to property taxes, insurance and other of $16.7 million recorded for 2005 increased
$2.2 million over 2004. The increase is primarily due to increased contractual payments to owners of the
condominiums at the Pink Shell for|use of their units as hotel rooms as a result of the sales of the White
Sand Villas tower in 2004. All unit owners in each building contractually put their units back to the resort
for use as hotel rooms. Also contrlbutmg to this increase are increases in insurance costs due to rising
insurance rates.

Corporate general and administrative

« Total expenses recorded for 2005 were $11.7 million compared with 2004 expenses of $8.8 million as a
result of the following: ‘

» Approximately $1.6 million of increases in compensation expense which were the result of compensation
plans and agreements which werecontingent or valued based upon our common share price.
Approximately $0.2 million of this increase was due to the Directors Deferred Compensation Plan as the
common share price at December'31, 2005 was higher than the common share price at December 31,
2004, and approximately $1.4 million was due to the vesting and payment of share and option awards

under an existing employment agreement as our common share price reached certain pre-established
thresholds; '

* Our 2005 REIT taxable income was in excess of the dividends paid during 2005 including the preferred
dividend paid during January 200q We expect to designate additional 2006 dividends as distributions
made to meet our 2005 requlrement and have recorded an excise tax of $0.4 million during 2005 related

to this anticipated timing; and
* Increases in certain non-recurring professional fees and other general corporate expenses.
Cost of condominium development and uni& sales

 Total expenses recorded for 2004 were $5.5 million. As the White Sand Villas project was completed
during 2004, there were no similar costs recorded during 2005.
Impairment of real estate ‘\
+ During 2005, we reduced the 1ntended holding period for one of our properties resulting in a $5.5 million
impairment charge. ‘
Interest Income “
« Interest income increased approximately $0.7 million from $0.4 million in 2004 to $1.1 million in 2005 as a
result of higher amounts of cash andf}‘ restricted cash on hand throughout the period.

Interest expense

» Interest expense decreased approximétely $2.0 million in 2005 from 2004 primarily as a result of an
approximate 31% decline in our weighted average outstanding debt during 2005. The decline was due to
the application of proceeds from property sales to reduce borrowings, the scheduled repayment of the
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original $108.0 million term loan as well as the scheduled amortization of the $130.0 million term loan.
Partially offsetting the savings from lower debt levels are increases in the overall weighted average interest
rate on variable debt instruments.

Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures

+ Equity in income increased to $11.3 million for 2005 versus equity in the losses of unconsolidated joint
ventures of $0.8 million in 2004 primarily as a result of the recognition of our share of the gain on the sale
of Hotel 71.

Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets

» Gain on sale/disposal of assets increased to $11.4 million in 2005 from $3.2 million in 2004 primarily as a
result of additional property insurance recoveries received in excess of the net book value of the disposed
assets related to water infiltration remediation.

Discontinued operations

« Please refer to Note 4 of Boykin Lodging Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included
within this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a summary of discontinued operations. Discontinued
operations reflect the operations of the properties disposed of during 2005 prior to their sale/disposal.
Included in 2005 discontinued operations is the net gain on sale/disposal of the three properties of
$19.3 million.

Based upon the above, 2005 had a net income attributable to common shareholders of $25.0 million compared to
the $4.9 million loss for 2004.

Results of Operations Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to 2003
Total revenues from continuing operations decreased to $203.9 million in 2004 from $213.6 million in 2003.

+ Hotel revenues increased $19.6 million from $176.4 million in 2003 to $196.0 million in 2004 as a result of
the following:

» An approximate 4.3% increase in RevPAR from 2003 for the 16 consolidated hotels which were owned,
open and operated under the TRS structure for both full years of 2004 and 2003 and owned as of
December 31, 2005. The increase in RevPAR was the result of an increase in occupancy levels of 2.8
points combined with a 0.2% decrease in the average daily rate;

» An increase of $10.8 million related to the inclusion of the hotel revenue of the Marco Island property
for a full year in 2004 versus a partial year in 2003, as it was acquired in August 2003;

» A $3.3 million decrease in revenue contribution from the two Melbourne, Florida properties as a result of
their closure after Hurricane Frances struck in early September; and

+ The inclusion of approximately $2.3 million of business interruption insurance recoveries within other
hotel revenues related to (a) a remediation project at a property which left rooms out of service during
2003 and 2004 and (b) the closure of the two Melbourne properties.

+ Revenues from condominium development and unit sales decreased to $7.5 million in 2004 versus
$36.9 million in 2003 as a result of the completion of the White Sand Villas development project in 2004
and the completion of sales of Sanibel View Villas units during 2003.

Hotel operating expenses

» In 2004, we incurred total hotel operating expenses, which include hotel departmental expenses, indirect
expenses and management fees, of $145.0 million. The gross operating profit of these hotels for the periods
owned and operated under a TRS totaled 26.0% in 2004 versus 25.6% for 2003. The hotels experienced
decreases in general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues, offset by increases in
franchise fees.

Property Taxes, Insurance and Other

» Total expenses related to property taxes, insurance and other of $14.4 million recorded for 2004 increased
$0.6 million over 2003. The increase is primarily due to increased contractual payments to owners of the
condominiums at the Pink Shell for use of their units as hotel rooms as a result of the sellout of Sanibel
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View Villas in 2003 and the completion and sales of the White Sand Villas tower in 2004. All unit owners
in each building contractually put t‘heir units back to the resort for use as hotel rooms. In addition, a full

year of tax and insurance expense related to the Marco Island property are recorded in 2004, as opposed to

a partial year in 2003. I‘

Corporate general and administrative |

 Total expenses recorded for 2004 \x)ere $8.8 million compared with 2003 expenses of $8.1 million primarily
as a result of additional staffing and third party services in maintaining compliance with new federal laws
and regulations addressing corporate governance issues, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and
with the new listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange.

Cost of condominium development and unit sales

 Total expenses recorded for 2004 w‘=re $5.5 million compared with $24.6 million in 2003

» Amounts expensed under the percentage of completlon method of accounting for the White Sand Villas
totaled $5.5 million during 2004 versus $21.6 million in 2003.

« 2003 costs include $3.0 million related to the sale of 19 Sanibel View Villas units.

Real estate related depreciation and amortization
» Depreciation and amortization decreased approximately $1.9 million in 2004 from 2003 as a result of:
!

» The inclusion of $3.4 million of accelerated depreciation related to pending demolition and removal of
two existing buildings at the Pmk Shell to make way for the new Captiva Villas in 2003,

+» An additional $0.5 million of deprematlon in 2004 related to a full year of ownership of the Marco Island
property, and i

. ‘\ . .
« Increases in depreciation related to recent capital expenditures.

Interest expense
« Interest expense decreased approxmlately $1.3 million in 2004 from 2003 as a result of:

* A decrease in the weighted average interest rate due to the expiration of a previously existing swap in
2003 which fixed $83.0 million of our debt at 7.32% during the first six months of 2003; and

* An approximate 4% decline in our weighted average outstanding debt during 2004. The decline was due

to the application of proceeds from property sales to reduce borrowings on the credit facility as well as
the scheduled amortization of the $130.0 million term loan.

Amortization of deferred financing costs

« Amortization of deferred financing costs decreased approximately $0.5 million to $1.4 million in 2004
primarily as a result of the replacement of the previously existing credit facility and a $45.0 million term
loan with a new credit facility in October 2003. The new facility had approximately $2.0 million less of
deferred costs to be amortized. |

Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets

+ Gain on sale/disposal of assets increased to $3.2 million in 2004 from $1.0 million in 2003 primarily as a
result of additional property insurance recoveries received.

Discontinued operations

¢ Please refer to Note 4 of Boykin Lot\iging Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included
within this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a summary of discontinued operations. Discontinued
operations reflect the operations of the properties disposed of during 2005 and 2004 prior to their
sale/disposal. Included in 2004 discontinued operations is a $4.3 million impairment charge related to the
Ramada Inn Bellevue Center and $2.1 million of minority interest expense related to the joint venture
partner as a result of the sale of Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn. Also included in 2004 discontinued operations
is the net gain on sale/disposal of the five properties of $8.4 million.

Based upon the above, 2004 had a net loss! attrlbutable to common shareholders of $4.9 million compared to the
$8.2 million loss for 2003.
|
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal source of cash to meet our cash requirements, including dividends to shareholders, is our share of
the Partnership’s cash flow from the operations of the hotels and condominium sales. Cash flow from hotel
operations is subject to all operating risks common to the hotel industry, including, but not limited to:

+ Competition for guests from other hotels;
« Adverse effects of general and local economic conditions;

+ Dependence on demand from business and leisure travelers, which may be seasonal and which may be
adversely impacted by health and safety-related concerns;

+ Increases in energy costs, airline fares, and other expenses related to travel, which may deter traveling;
» Impact of the financial difficulties of the airline industry;

« Increases in operating costs related to inflation and other factors, including wages, benefits, insurance and
energy;

» Weather-related issues;
« Overbuilding in the hotel industry, especially in particular markets; and

+ Actual or threatened acts of terrorism and actions taken against terrorists that cause public concern about
travel safety.

The cash flow from condominium development is subject to risk factors common to real estate sales and
development, including, but not limited to:

» Competition from other condominium projects;

* Construction delays;

« Reliance on contractors and subcontractors;

» Construction cost overruns; and

+ The ability of the condominium purchasers to secure financing.

As of December 31, 2005, we had $16.3 million of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $31.7 million of
restricted cash for the payment of property acquisitions, capital expenditures, real estate taxes, interest and
insurance.

We have a $100.0 million credit facility ($40.0 million outstanding as of December 31, 2005) to fund acquisitions
of additional hotels, renovations and capital expenditures, and for our working capital needs, subject to limitations
contained in the credit agreement. The borrowing base availability under the credit facility was approximately
$97.9 million at December 31, 2005.

For information relating to the terms of our credit facility and our term note, please see Notes 5 and 6,
respectively, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of Boykin Lodging Company included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our $130.0 million term note payable is secured by property-specific mortgages and has only financial reporting
covenants. There were outstanding borrowings at year end totaling $98.5 million against our term note payable.
The credit facility contains covenants regarding overall leverage and debt service coverage. As of December 31,
2005, we are in compliance with such covenants.

We may seek to negotiate additional credit facilities, replacement credit facilities, or we may issue debt
instruments. Any debt incurred or issued by us may be secured or unsecured, long-term, medium-term or short-
term, bear interest at a fixed or variable rate, and be subject to such other terms as the Board of Directors
considers prudent. The availability of borrowings under the credit facility is restrained by borrowing base and
loan-to-value limits, as well as other financial performance covenants contained in the agreement. There can be
no assurance that funds will be available in anticipated amounts from the credit facility.

in 2006, we expect to continue with planned refurbishments and replacements at selected existing hotels. We
expect to use cash available from operations and restricted capital expenditure reserves, as well as borrowings
under our line of credit, to fund such renovations. Current estimates are that the remaining costs of the repairs
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from the damage caused by the hurrlcanes at our two Melbourne, Florida properties to be spent during 2006
approximate $25 million. ‘

Construction of the Captiva Villas development project at the Pink Shell has commenced. We expect to fund
initial construction costs using a combination of cash available from operations and borrowings on our credit
facility, as well as deposits received pursuant to sales contracts.

We previously announced that we were exploring the option of converting the Melbourne Suites Beach Resort to
a condominium hotel. At this time, when the Melbourne Suites Beach Resort reopens, it will resume operations
as a hotel as we have currently suspcnded“ the potential development of the hotel as a condo-hotel project.

We have considered our short-term (deﬁn“ed as one-year or less) liquidity needs and the adequacy of our
estimated cash flow from operations and other expected liquidity sources to meet these needs. We expect our
principal short-term liquidity needs will bq to fund normal recurring expenses, debt service requirements,
distributions on the preferred shares and any minimum distribution required to maintain our REIT status. We
anticipate that these needs will be met with cash on hand, cash flows provided by operating activities, using
availability under the credit facility and proceeds from dispositions of non-core assets. We also consider capital
improvements, construction and property acquisitions as short-term needs that can be funded either with cash
flows provided by operating activities, by ut1hzmg availability under our credit facility, or from proceeds from
additional financings.

We expect to meet long-term (defined as grcater than one year) liquidity requirements such as property
acquisitions, scheduled debt maturities, major renovations, development projects and other nonrecurring capital
improvements utilizing cash flow from operations, proceeds from dlsposmons of non-core assets, additional debt
financings and preferred or common equity offerings. We expect to acquire or develop additional hotel properties
only as suitable opportunities arise, and we will not undertake acquisition or development of properties unless
stringent criteria have been met.

Based upon its review of the Company’s liquidity and capital requirements, the Board of Directors did not declare
a dividend with respect to our common shares for 2005. Pursuant to the terms of our credit facility, we are
limited to distributing not more than 75% of FFO attributable to common shareholders. The credit facility does
not limit distributions to preferred shareholders or distributions required for us to maintain our REIT status or to
offset the need to pay federal income taxes. The timing and amount of any declaration of a common share
dividend will depend upon varicus factors, mcludmg the continued improving performance of our hotels, our
projected cash available for distribution, our projected taxable income, and other factors that our Board of
Directors considers relevant. Currently, we expect to continue to pay a regular quarterly dividend on our preferred
shares. In 2006, we expect to make common share dividend distributions sufficient to satisfy the distribution
requirements relating to 2005 REIT taxablc income.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We believe that neither Boykin nor its unconsolidated entities have entered into any off balance sheet
arrangements which would have a current or future impact on our financial condition, changes in financial
condition, results of operations, liquidity or!capital resources in ways which would be considered material to our
investors.

Cash Flows

Cash flows from discontinued operations are combined with the cash flows from continuing operations in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows within Boykin’s consolidated financial statements. For 2005, cash flows
related to discontinued operations approx1m}ated $31.0 million including sales proceeds. Additionally, cash flows
related to the sale of the Hotel 71 propertyicontributed approximately $23.5 million to cash flows provided by
investing activities. The 2005 sale of propemes is not expected to have a material impact on the future liquidity

and capital resources of Boykin. |
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Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following is a summary of Boykin’s obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2005, excluding

unconsolidated joint ventures (in thousands):
Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years S years
Long-Term Debt Obligations ....................... $ 98,529 § 4,166 $ 9,236 $10,639 § 74,488
Capital Lease Obligations ..................c..ooonn. $ 0 3 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Operating Lease Obligations ........................ $ 29,025 $ 1,283 $ 1,542 §$ 1,150 $ 25,050
Purchase Obligations .............................. $ 5790 $5070 $ 465 $§ 198 $§ 57
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on the
Registrant’s Balance Sheet under GAAP ........... $ 5977 § 117 $§ 292 § 383 $ 5,185
Total. . e $139,321  $10,636  $11,535 $12,370  $104,780

In addition to the amounts-disclosed above, Boykin and its subsidiaries are subject to various franchise,
management, lease and other agreements with parties that have ongoing fees that are contingent upon future
results of operations of the hotels in its portfolio as well as a potential for termination fees dependent upon the
timing and method of termination of such agreements.

Included in long-term liabilities above are liabilities relating to Boykin Kansas City, LL.C. These liabilities were
assumed in connection with the acquisition of the Doubletree Kansas City in November of 1997. Please refer to
Note 13 of Boykin Lodging Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included within this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of our obligations related to the tax increment financing of the Doubletree
Kansas City.

Inflation

Operators of hotels in general can change room rates quickly, but competitive pressures may limit operators’
ability to raise rates to keep pace with inflation.

Our general and administrative costs as well as real estate and personal property taxes, property and casualty
insurance and ground rent are subject to inflation.

Seasonality

Our hotels’ operations historically have been seasonal. The hotels located in Florida experience their highest
occupancy in the first quarter, while the remaining hotels maintain their highest occupancy rates during the
second and third quarters. This seasonality pattern can be expected to cause fluctuations in our quarterly
operating results and cash flow received from hotel operations.

Competition and Other Economic Factors

Our hotels are located in developed areas that contain other hotel properties. The future occupancy, average daily
rate and RevPAR of any hotel could be materially and adversely affected by an increase in the number of or
quality of the competitive hotel properties in its market area. Competition could also affect the quality and
quantity of future investment opportunities, or our ability to sell existing properties.

As a portion of the lodging industry’s sales are based upon business, commercial and leisure travel, changes in

general economic conditions, demographics, or changes in local business economics, could affect these and other
travel segments. This may affect demand for rooms, which would affect hotel revenues.

Please refer to Item 1(c) of this Form 10-K for further discussion regarding Competition.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accountlng Standards Board (“FASB”) issued revised SFAS No. 123
(Statement 123(R)), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R requlres all entities to
recognize the fair value of share-based payment awards (stock compensation) classified in equity, unless they are
unable to reasonably estimate the fair valde of the award. Boykin adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R on
July 1, 2005, using the modified prospective approach permitted by the literature. This approach required that any
unvested portion of options at the time of jadoption be expensed in the earnings statement over the remaining
service period of those options. Boykin has historically issued options under its long-term incentive plans
(“LTIPs”). At the time of adoption, there were no unvested options. Vested options continue to be accounted for
under the disclosure only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and applies
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its employee share
option plan. If Boykin had elected to recognize compensation costs for the LTIP based on the fair value at the
grant dates for option awards consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, reported amounts of net
income (loss) and net income (loss) per share would have been changed to the pro forma amounts indicated
below. t

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)
Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004

‘ Pro Forma Pro Forma

Net income (loss) attributable to comﬁmon shareholders ..................... $24,971 $(4,911)

Stock-based employee compensation CXPENSE ... - (126)

Proforma net income (loss) attributab:le to common shareholders ............. $24,971 $(5,037)
Proforma net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders per share:

Basic ... O $ 142 $ (0.29)

Diluted ........................ U $ 140 $ (0.29)

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 47 (“FIN 47”), “Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” FIN 47 refers to a legal obligation to
perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional on a future
event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. An entity is required to recognize a liability for the
fair value of a conditional asset retirement iobligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated.
The fair value of a liability for the conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized when incurred,
generally upon acquisition, construction, or;development and through the normal operation of the asset. This
interpretation is effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after December 31, 2005. Adoption did not
have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.” SFAS No. 154
replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes” and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in
Interim Financial Statements.” SFAS No. 154 requires that a voluntary change in accounting principle be applied
retrospectively with all prior period financial statements presented on the new accounting principle unless it is
impracticable to do so. SFAS No. 154 also provides that a change in method of depreciating or amortizing a
long-lived nonfinancial asset be accounted for as a change in estimate effected by a change in accounting
principle and that correction of errors in prev1ously issued financial statements should be termed a “restatement.”
SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and correction of errors made in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. Early adoption of this rstandard is permitted for accounting changes and corrections of errors
made in fiscal years beginning after June 1“ 2005. The Company believes that implementing SFAS No. 154
should not have a material impact on its financial position and results of operations.
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In June 2005, the Emerging Issues Task Force released Issue No. 04-5 “Determining Whether a General Partner,
or the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners
Have Certain Rights” (“EITF 04-5). EITF 04-5 creates a framework for evaluating whether a general partner
or a group of general partners controls a limited partnership or a managing member or a group of managing
members controls a limited liability company and therefore should consolidate the entity. EITF 04-5 states that
the presumption of general partner or managing member control would be overcome only when the limited
partners or non-managing members have certain specific rights as outlined in EITF 04-5. EITF 04-5 is effective
immediately for all newly formed limited partnerships and for existing limited partnership agreements that are
modified. EITF 04-5 is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In September of 2005, the FASB re-circulated an exposure draft of a final standard on earnings per share
(“EPS”) entitled “Earnings per Share - an Amendment to FAS 128.” The final standard is now expected to be
issued with an expected effective date for us as of June 30, 2006. The standard will require retrospective
application for all prior periods presented. The significant proposed changes to the EPS computation are changes
to the treasury stock method and contingent share guidance for computing year-to-date diluted EPS, removal of
the ability to overcome the presumption of share settlement when computing diluted EPS when there is a choice
of share or cash settlement and inclusion of mandatorily convertible securities in basic EPS. The Company does
not expect adoption of the standard to have a material impact on earnings per share.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use certain non-GAAP financial measures, funds from operations attributable to common shareholders
(“FFO”) and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”), which are measures of
our historical financial performance that are not calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP. The
following discussion defines these terms and describes why we believe they are useful measures of our
performance as well as provides a reconciliation from GAAP measures to these non-GAAP measures for each of
the three years ended December 31, 2005.

Neither FFO nor EBITDA represent cash generated from operating activities as determined by GAAP and
neither should be considered as an alternative to GAAP net income as an indication of the Company’s financial
performance or to cash flow from operating activities as determined by GAAP as a measure of liquidity, nor is
either indicative of funds available to fund cash needs, including the ability to make cash distributions. FFO and
EBITDA may include funds that may not be available for the Company’s discretionary use due to functional
requirements to conserve funds for capital expenditures and property acquisitions, and other commitments and
uncertainties.

FFO

The White Paper on Funds From Operations approved by the Board of Governors of the National Association of
Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) in April 2002 defines FFO as net income (loss) {computed in
accordance with GAAP), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of properties, plus real estate related depreciation
and amortization, and after comparable adjustments for our portion of these items related to unconsolidated
entities and joint ventures. We believe that FFO is heipful as a measure of the performance of an equity REIT
because it provides investors and management with another indication of the Company’s performance prior to
deduction of real estate related depreciation and amortization.

We compute FFO in accordance with our interpretation of standards established by NAREIT which may not be

comparable to FFO reported by other REITSs that do not define the term in accordance with the current
NAREIT definition or that interpret the NAREIT definition differently than us.
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The following is a reconciliation between net income (loss) and FFO (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003

Net income (loss) ................ e $29722 § (160) $(3,426)
Minority interest .. ................ e e 5,565 803 (3,319)
Real estate related depreciation and amortization .................. 22,291 22,217 24,067
Real estate related depreciation and arjjnortization included in

discontinued operations .......... e 745 4,402 7,650
Gain on sale/disposal of assets . ........... ... ..., (34,103)  (13,083) (1,724)
(Gain) loss on sale/disposal of individual assets included in

discontinued operations .......... e (366) 3 (550)
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated joint ventures including gain

on sale ..o (11,343) 814 870
FFO adjustment related to joint ventures ......................... 55 1,016 2,324
Preferred dividends declared .. ............ .. ... ... . ... .. . ... ... (4,751) (4,751) (4,751)
Funds from operations after preferred dividends................. ... 7,815 11,261 21,141
Less: Funds from operations related to minority interest............. 1,047 1,519 2,866
Funds from operations attributable to common shareholders ......... $ 6,768 § 9,742  $18,275

FFO was negatively impacted by $5.5 million, $4.3 million and $2.8 million of impairment charges for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, before minority interest. Net of minority interest, these
amounts totaled $4.7 million, $3.7 million and $1.3 million, respectively.

EBITDA

We believe that EBITDA is helpful to inv@stors and management as a measure of the performance of the
Company because it provides an indicationof the operating performance of the properties within the portfolio and
is not impacted by the capital structure of the REIT.

The following is a reconciliation between operating income and EBITDA (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003

Operating iNCoMe .. .....oi ittt it $ 977 $ 7905 $11,754
Otherincome .. ................ P 2 8 28
[nterest income ................ e 1,106 377 597
Real estate related depreciation and amortization............... 22,291 22,217 24,067
EBITDA attributable to discontinued operations ............... 1,336 (228) 5,458
Company’s share of EBITDA of unconsolidated joint ventures. . . . 1,226 2,713 2,667
EBITDA applicable to joint venture minority interest ........... (192) (185) 1,058
EBITDA.................... e $26,746  $32,807  $45,629

EBITDA was negatively impacted by $5.5 ﬁlillion, $4.3 million and $2.8 million of impairment charges for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Our primary market risk exposure consists of changes in interest rates on borrowings under our secured credit
facility that bear interest at variable rates that fluctuate with market interest rates.
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We have entered into both variable and fixed rate debt arrangements to allow us to optimize the balance of using
variable rate debt versus fixed rate debt. Our variable rate debt allows us to maximize financial flexibility when
selling properties and minimize potential prepayment penalties typical of fixed rate loans. Qur $130.0 million,
6.9% fixed rate term note allows us to minimize our interest rate risk exposure. Approximately 71% of our
outstanding debt at December 31, 2005 was fixed-rate in nature, compared with 51% at the end of 2004, primarily
as a result of the paydown of outstanding debt with proceeds from the 2005 property sales. The weighted average
interest rate of our variable rate debt and total debt as of December 31, 2005 was 2.4% and 7.3%, respectively.
The weighted average interest rate of our variable rate debt and total debt as of December 31, 2004 was 4.7% and
5.8%, respectively.

Our share of debt under our unconsolidated joint venture with Concord Hospitality Enterprises of $9.1 million at
December 31, 2005 is fixed at a rate of 5.99% per annum.

We review interest rate exposure continuously in an effort to minimize the risk of interest rate fluctuations. It is
our policy to manage our exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates on our borrowings through the use of
fixed rate debt instruments, to the extent that reasonably favorable rates are obtainable with such arrangements,
and after considering the need for financial flexibility related to our debt arrangements. We may enter into
forward interest rate agreements, or similar agreements, to hedge our variable rate debt instruments where we
believe the risk of adverse changes in market rates is significant. Under a forward interest rate agreement, if the
referenced interest rate increases, we would be entitled to a receipt in settlement of the agreement that
economically would offset the higher financing cost of the debt issued. If the referenced interest rate decreases,
we would make payments in settlement of the agreement, creating an-expense that economically would offset the
reduced financing cost of the debt issued. As of December 31, 2005, we do not have any material market-
sensitive financial instruments.

We do not believe that changes in market interest rates will have a material impact on the performance or fair
value of our hotel portfolio as the value of our hotel portfolio is based primarily on the operating cash flow of the
hotels, before interest expense charges. However, a change of 1/4% in the index rate to which our variable rate
debt is tied would change our annual interest incurred by $0.1 million based upon the balances outstanding on our
variable rate instruments at December 31, 2005.

Using sensitivity analysis to measure the potential change in fair value of financial instruments based on changes
in interest rates, we have determined that a hypothetical increase of 1% in the interest rates for instruments with
similar maturities would decrease the fair value of our fixed rate debt by approximately $2.1 million as compared
with the fair value at December 31, 2005, which approximated the carrying value.

Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Data

See Index to the Financial Statements on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

On April 14, 2004, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors voted to approve the engagement of Grant
Thornton LLP (“Grant”) as the Company’s independent auditor for the year ending December 31, 2004, to be
effective upon Grant’s acceptance of the engagement to act as the Company’s independent auditor. On April 16,
2004, Grant accepted the engagement. As such, on April 16, 2004, Deloitte & Touche, LLP (“D&T”), was
dismissed as Boykin’s independent auditor.

The report of D&T on the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 did not
contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion and was not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit
scope or accounting principles.

In connection with the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003,
and during the interim period through April 16, 2004, there were no disagreements with D&T on any matters of
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope and procedures which, if not
resolved to the satisfaction of D&T would have caused D&T to make reference to the matter in their report.
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and the subsequent interim period through April 16, 2004, there
were no reportable events as defined in Item 304(a) (1) (v) of Regulation S-K. D&T has furnished the Company
a letter addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commission stating that it agrees with the above statements. A
copy of that letter, dated April 19, 2004, was filed as Exhibit 16.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 20, 2004,
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During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 and the subsequent interim period through April 16, 2004,
neither the Company nor anyone on behalf of the Company consulted with Grant regarding either the application
of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed; or the type of audit opinion that
might be rendered on the Company’s financial statements; or on any matter considered important by the
Company in reaching a decision as to any accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue or any matter that was
either the subject of a disagreement as defined in Item 304(a) (1) (v) (iv) of Regulation S-K, or any reportable
event, as defined in Item 304(a) (1) (v) of Regulation S-K.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and
our principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term
is defined under Exchange Act Rules 13a + 15(e) and 15d ~ 15(e). Based upon this evaluation, our principal
executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Management assessed the effectiveness
of our internal control as of December 31, .2005. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set
forth in Internal Control - Integrated Franiework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on our assessment, management concluded that our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005. Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, has audited and issued their report on management’s assessment of its internal control over
financial reporting, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our last
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting. ‘

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the information under the headings
“Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” contained in Boykin’s
Proxy Statement in connection with its 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and the information under the
headings “Executive Officers of the Registrant” and “Corporate Governance” in Part I of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading
“Executive Compensation” contained in Boykin’s Proxy Statement in connection with its 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this Item 12, other than the information required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-
K, is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management” contained in Boykin’s Proxy Statement in connection with its 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The information required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is set forth in section (d) of Item 5 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ftem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” contained in Boykin’s Proxy Statement in connection with its
2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading
“Principal Accounting Fees and Services” contained in Boykin’s Proxy Statement in connection with its 2006
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) See page F-1 for an index to ﬁnanc1al statements and required schedules. All other financial statement
schedules within the provisions of Regulatlon S-X that are not listed in the index are either not required to
be included under the related 1nstruct10ns or are not applicable or the appropriate information is included in
the notes to the consolidated financial ‘statements and therefore, have been omitted.

Exhibits

3.1 (a)
3.2 (b)
4.1 (b)
42 (a)
4.3 (e)

43a(f)
10.1 (h)
102 (b)
103 (b)
104 (b)
10.5 (b)
10.6 (b)
10.7 (b)
108 (b)
109 (b)
10.10(b)
10.11(¢)
10.12(d)
10.13(d)

10.14(d)
10.15(d)

10.16(f)
10.17(f)
10.18(f)
10.19¢i)
10.20(j)

10.21(j)

10.22(§)
10.23(k)
10.24(1)
10.25(1)
10.26(1)
10.27(1)
12

16.1 (g)
21

23.1

232

311

31.2

32.1

322

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended

Code of Regulations

Specimen Share Certificate

Dividend Reinvestment and Optional Share Purchase Plan

Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of May 23, 1999 between Boykin Lodging Company and Naticnal City Bank as rights
agent

Amendment to Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2001

Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P.

Form of Registration Rights Agreement

Long-Term Incentive Plan*

Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan*

Employment Agreement between the Company and Robert W. Boykin*

Form of Percentage Lease

Intercompany Convertible Note

Agreements with General Partners of the Contributed Partnerships

Form of Noncompetition Agreement

Alignment of Interests Agreement

Description of Employment Arrangement between the Company and Richard C. Conti*

Limited Liability Company Agreement of Boykin/AEW LLC dated as of February 1, 1999

Stock Purchase Option Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company, Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P. and AEW Partners
111, L.P. dated as of February 1, 1999

Warrant to Purchase Class A Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series 1999-A of Boykin Lodging Company dated as of
February 1, 1999

Registration Rights Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company and AEW Partners I1I, L.P. dated as of

February 1, 1999

Master Contribution Agreement between BMC, JABO LLC, the Company and the Partnership dated as of December 31, 2001
Form of Hotel Management Agreement*

Registration Rights Agreement betweenrthe Company and JABO LLC dated January 1, 2002

Description of Employment Arrangement between the Company and Shereen P. Jones*

Hotel Purchase and Sale Agreement; Hotel 71 Chicago, Illinois, By and Between Boykin Chicago L.L.C., as Seller and the
Falor Companies, Inc., as Purchaser

Modification Letter - Stock Purchase Option Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company, Boykin Hotel Properties,
L.P. and AEW Partners 111, L.P. dated as of February 1, 1999

Modification of Employment Agreement“ between the Company and Robert W. Boykin*

Boykin Lodging Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan*

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Company and Robert W. Boykin*

Amended and Restated COO Severance. Plan*

Amended and Restated CFO/CIO Severance Plan*

Amended and Restated Key Employee Severance Plan (Sr. Vice Presidents and Vice Presidents)*

Statement re Computation of Ratios

Letter of Deloitte & Touche LLP required by Item 304 of Regulation S-K

Subsidiaries of the Registrant ‘

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), in Accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), in Accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

- |
(a) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999.

(b) Incorporated by reference from Amendment Né. 3 to Boykin’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (Registration No. 333-6341)
(the “Form $-117) filed on October 24, 1996. Each of the above exhibits has the same exhibit number in the Form S-11.

(©) Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form iO-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.
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(d) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.

(e) Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 1 from Boykin’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on June 10, 1999.
(f) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on January 14, 2002.

() Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2004.

(h) Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form &-K filed on October 4, 2002.

(i) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

9)) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(k) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2005.

(1) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on June 7, 2005.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Boykin Lodging Company

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting included in Item 9a of the Form 10K, that Boykin Lodging Company (an Ohio
Corporation) and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Boykin Lodging Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Boykin Lodging Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Also in our opinion, Boykin Lodging Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Boykin Lodging Company as of December 31, 2005 and
2004, and the related statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash
flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2005 and our report dated February 28, 2006
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
February 28, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Boykin Lodging Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Boykin Lodging Company (an Ohio
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Boykin Lodging Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2005
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. Schedule 111 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Boykin Lodging Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated
February 28, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
February 28, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Boykin Lodging Company
Cleveland, Ohio

We have audited the consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows of Boykin
Lodging Company (an Ohio corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31,
2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of
operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows of Boykin Lodging Company and subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & ToucHE LLP
Cleveland, Ohio

March 25, 2004 (March 14, 2006 as to the effects of discontinued operations in fiscal 2004 and 2005 as described
in Note 4)
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BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

CONSbLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

2005 2004

ASSETS ‘
Investment in hotel properties ......... P $ 512,703 $ 503,802

Accumulated depreciation. . ...... ... . . .. (137,586)  (120,442)
Investment in hotel properties, net. . ... o 375,117 383,360
Cash and cash equivalents ........... ... . . . i 16,290 13,521
Restricted cash .. ... .. 31,699 13,022
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $356 and $85 as of

December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively .. .. ... ... 7,307 11,690
Inventories .. ... 1,297 1,278
Deferred financing costs and other, net . ............ . ... . ... . 1,946 1,990
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures ................ ... .. oL, 1,410 14,048
O A88CES « vttt et e 12,739 9,048
Assets related to discontinued operations, net .............. ... .. — 29,423

$ 447,805 § 477,380

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Borrowings against credit facility ........ e e $ 40,000 S 6,446
Term notes payable . .. ... .. 98,529 193,539
Accounts payable and accrued EXPENSES . .. ..ottt e 37,670 35,282
Accounts payable to related party ...... ... ... e 1,145 1,070
Dividends/distributions payable ........ ... e 1,188 1,188
Minority interest in JOINt VENTUTES . ... .. oo\ttt e e it 777 (24)
Minority interest in operating partnership ...............c it 13,946 10,062
Liabilities related to discontinued Operations .................verieereernnnnnnn... — 2,369

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred shares, without par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 181,000 shares

issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 (liquidation preference

Of $45,250) . oo e — —
Common shares, without par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized; 17,594,081 and

17,450,314 shares outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.......

Additional paid-in capital . ... . 361,309 358,688
Distributions in excess of INCOME . .. ... ...t iii (104,261)  (129,232)
Unearned compensation - restricted shares .. ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... ....... (2,498) (2,008)

Total shareholders’ equity .......... e 254,550 227,448

$ 447,805 § 477,380

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)

2005 2004 2003
Revenues:
Hotel revenues:
ROOMIS . . e $128,856  $127,506  $115,812
Food and Beverage. . .. ... e 59,968 57,790 53,342
R . . e e 15,463 10,684 7,220
Total hOtel TEVEMUES . .. ottt et e e e e e e e 204,287 195,980 176,374
Other Operating TEVETIUE . . . ..ottt ettt ettt et ettt e et e e e e ee s 198 380 311
Revenues from condominium development and unitsales ........... ... .o it —_ 7,541 36,883
Ot FEVEIUES . . ittt et it e et e e e e 204,485 203,901 213,568
Expenses:
Hotel operating expenses:
ROOIIS . o oo e e e e 32,296 32,061 28,981
Food and Deverage. . .. ...ttt e 40,577 39,309 36,917
Other QITECt . . ot e 5,729 5,563 4,406
TOdireCt . o oo e 63,136 62,661 56,115
Management fees to related Party ... ... ... e 5,635 5,455 3,976
Management fees ~other ... ... . — — 746
Total hotel OpPerating EXPEISES . . . . oo\ttt ettt e et ettt ettt e e 147,373 145,049 131,141
Property taxes, insurance and Other. . .. ... ... e 16,680 14,442 13,864
Cost of condominium development and unit sales. ... ... it e — 5,509 24,645
Real estate related depreciation and amortization . . ... i i e 22,291 22,217 24,067
Corporate general and administrative .. ... ... ..o e 11,664 8,779 8,097
Impairment of real e8tate .. .. ... e e s 5,500 — —
Total OPeratilg EXPEISES . . . . . .ttt e et v e e e e e 203,508 195,996 201,814
OPETAtiNg INCOME . .ot ettt ettt et ettt et e et e e e et e e e 977 7,905 11,754
INtErest INCOME . ...\ et et e e ettt e e e e e e 1,106 377 597
Other INCOIME . . .ttt et e et e e e e e e e e e 2 8 28
IOETEST @XPEIISE . . . oo ittt et et e e e e e (11,586)  (13,629) (14,923)
Amortization of deferred financing Costs .. ... . e (1,540) (1,367) (1,906)
Federal InCome taXes. ...ttt i e e (75 — —
Minority interest in loss of joint VENTUTes .. ... ... . .. e 38 — —
Minority interest in (income) loss of operating partnership............. .o i (620) 1,845 2,025
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures including gainonsale ..................... 11,343 (814) (870)
Loss before gain on sale/disposal of assets and discontinued operations .................ccoviriionn. (355) (5,675) (3,295)
Gain on sale/disposal Of @SSEIS .. .. ...t e 11,387 3,175 954
Income (loss) before discontinued Operations ... ... ... iiiii ittt 11,032 (2,500) (2,341)
Discontinued operations, net of operating partnership minority interest income (expense) of $(3,264),
$(412) and $192, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively............. 18,690 2,340 (1,085)
Net inCOME (LOSS) . . . it e et e e e e e e e e e $29722 § (160) $ (3,426)
Preferred dividends .. ... ..o e (4,751) (4,751) (4,751)
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders ......... ... .. .. . ... . . i $ 24971 § (4911) § (8,177)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to common shareholders before discontinued operations
BasiC . o e e $ 036 $ (042) § (041)
DIIIIEA © ..ottt e e e e $ 035 § (042) $ (04I)
Discontinued operations per share
BasIC . . e e $ 106 $ 013 § (0.06)
DUted . e e e $ 104 S 013 § (0.06)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to common shareholders®
BasiC . . e e $ 142 § (028) 3% (047)
DHUtEd . . $ 140 $ (028) $ (047)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
BasiC . . e e e e 17,567 17,426 17,336
Dluted . e 17,887 17,553 17,470

(a) Per share amounts may not add due to rounding

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Balance at January 1, 2003 .......
Issuance of common shares, net
of offering expenses of $4 . . ..
Common share purchases for
treasury ...................
Dividends declared
- $0.18 per common share ...
- $26.25 per Class A preferred
share ........ .. .o oo
Amortization of unearned
compensation
Netloss..........ooiieinn.
Other comprehensive income
- net unrealized gain on
interest rate swap..........

Total comprehensive loss. . ... ..

Balance at December 31, 2003 .. ..
Vesting of restricted common
share grants. ... ............
Issuance of restricted common
share grants. ...............
Common share purchases for
freasury ...................
Dividends declared
- $26.25 per Class A preferred
share ......... ... ... ... ..
Amortization of unearned
compensation
Netloss.....................

Balance at December 31, 2004 .. ..
Vesting of restricted common
share grants. ...............
Issuance of restricted common
share grants................
Common share purchases for
Teasury .........oovvnennnn
Exercise of stock options ... .. ..
Vesting of variable stock options
Dividends declared
- $26.25 per Class A preferred
share ........ ... ... ...
Amortization of unearned
compensation
Netincome ..................

Balance at December 31, 2005. ...

BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004, AND 2003

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Additional Distributions Other
Preferred Common Paid-In In Excess of Comprehensive Unearned
Shares Shares Capital Income Gain/(Loss) Compensation Total
181,000 17,276,407 $356,228  $(112,970) $(1,773) $(1,194)  $240,291
— 77,528 1,143 — — (990) 153
— (9,555) (81) — — — (81)
- - - (3,174) — — (3,174)
_ - — (4,751) — — (4,751)
— — — — — 756 756
— — — (3,426) — — (3,426)
— — — — 1,773 — 1,773
- — — — — - (1,653)
181,000 17,344,380 357,290 (124,321) — (1,428) 231,541
— 128,745 — — — — —
— — 1,589 — — (1,589) —
— {22,311) (191) — — — (191)
— — — (4,751) — — (4,751)
— — — — — 1,009 1,009
— — — (160) — — (160)
181,000 17,450,314 358,688 (129,232) — (2,008) 227,448
— 144,357 — — — — —
— — 2,028 — — (2,028) —
— (15,590) (142) — — — (142)
— 15,000 118 — — — 118
_ — 617 — — — 617
— — — (4,751) — — (4,751)
— — — — — 1,538 1,538
—_ — — 29,722 — — 29,722
181,000 17,594,081 $361,309 $(104,261) $ — $(2,498)  $254,550

See notes to consolidated financial statemen;ts.
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BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (10SS) ..o v vttt e $ 29722 § (160) $ (3,426)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash flow provided by
operating activities -

Gain on sale/disposal of assets ....... ... ... ... i, {34,469) (13,080) (2,274)
Impairment of real estate . ....... ... ... it 5,500 4,300 2,800
Depreciation and amortization. ......... ... ... i 24,585 28,073 33,822
Charges related to equity based compensation ...................... 2,155 1,009 756
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated joint ventures ............. (11,343) 814 870
MINority Interests . .. ..ottt e 5,565 803 (3,319)
Changes in assets and liabilities -
Accounts receivable and inventories . ......... ... .. . o e, 5,351 28,308 (31,083)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ............ ..., 1,045 (9,118) 1,902
Amounts due to/from Iessees .. ...t 10 80 (217)
OtheT o (2,743) (1,232) 4,193
Net cash flow provided by operating activities .......................... 25,378 40,297 4,024

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures .......................... — (438) (481)
Distributions received from unconsolidated joint ventures ............... 23,972 1,698 572
Changes in restricted cash . . ... ... i (18,677) 2,343 (1,851)
Improvements and additions to hotel properties, net ................... (21,120) (30,834)  (54,210)
Net proceeds from sale of assets. ............ ... 62,704 93,101 30,336
Net cash flow provided by (used in) investing activities .................. 46,879 65,870 (25,634)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments of dividends and distributions. ................ ... .. ... .... (4,751) (4,751)  (11,483)
Net borrowings (repayments) against credit facilities .................. 33,554 (65,500) 71,946
Term note DOTTOWINGS . .« ¢\ttt et et e et e i — 14,133 13,222
Repayment of termnotes. . ... ... i e (95,010) (47,537)  (61,106)
Payment of deferred financing costs . ......... ... i, (1,426) (327) (2,339)
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares........................ 118 — 153
Cash payment for common share purchases .......................... (142) (191) (81)
Distributions to joint venture minority interest partners, net ............. (1,831) (2,486) (140)
Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities .................. (69,488) (106,659) 10,170
Net change in cash and cash equivalents.................cciiiiienn.n.. $ 2,769 § (492) $(11,440)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ................... ... ..... 13,521 14,013 25,453
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year .......... ...t $ 16290 $ 13,521 § 14,013

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

1. Background:

Boykin Lodging Company, an Ohio corporation (together with its subsidiaries “Boykin®), is a real estate
investment trust (“REIT”) that owns hotels throughout the United States of America. As of December 31, 2005,
Boykin owned interests in 20 hotels containing a total of 5,820 guestrooms located in 13 states, 18 of which were
affiliated with nationally-recognized franchisors. Boykin’s largest franchise affiliation is with Doubletree®. As of
December 31, 2005, Boykin owned seven Doubletree hotels in six states, which accounted for approximately 45%
of the total rooms in Boykin’s portfolio. Other brands that Boykin is affiliated with include Hilton®, Marriott® and
Radisson®.

The operations of the hotels have h1stoncally been seasonal. The five hotels located in Florida have historically
experienced their highest occupancy in the first quarter, while the remaining hotels have historically maintained
higher occupancy rates during the second and third quarters.

Formation

Boykin was formed and completed an initial public offering (the “IPO”) in 1996 to continue and expand the
nearly 40-year history of hotel ownership, acquisition, redevelopment and repositioning activities of its
predecessors, Boykin Management Company and its affiliates. Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P., an Ohio limited
partnership (the “Partnership™), is the operating partnership that transacts business and holds the direct and
indirect ownership interest in Boykin’s hotels. As of December 31, 2005, Boykin had an 85.5% ownership interest
in and was the sole general partner of the Partnership.

Since the IPO, Boykin has raised capital through a combination of common and preferred share issuances, debt
financings, joint ventures and cash flow generated from operations.

As of December 31, 2005, Boykin Management Company Limited Liability Company (“BMC”} and certain of
its subsidiaries managed 19 of the 20 hotels in which Boykin had ownership interests. BMC is owned by Robert
W. Boykin, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Boykin (53.8%), and his brother, John E. Boykin (46.2%).

Consolidated Joint Ventures

During the three year period ended December 31, 20035, Boykin was a party to the following joint ventures for the
purposes of owning hotels. The joint ventures which owned the Holiday Inn Minneapolis West, Marriott’s Hunt
Valley Inn and the Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World, have sold their respective hotels as noted below.
These partnerships were or will be dissolved following the satisfaction of all outstanding obligations of the
partnerships.

Boykin v
Ownership Ownership Hotel  Date of Hotel
Name of Joint Venture JV Partner Percentage Percentage  Hotel Owned Under Joint Venture =~ Manager Sale
BoyStar Ventures, L.P. Interstate Hotels and Résorts 91% 9% Holiday Inn Minneapolis West BMC  August 2004
Shawan Road Hotel L.P. Davidson Hotel Company 91% 9% Marrott’s Hunt Valley Inn Davidson  July 2004

Boykin San Diego LLC Outrigger Lodging Services 91% 9% Hampton Inn Outrigger November
: San Diego Airport/Sea World 2005

In 20085, Boykin became a 50% partner in Marathon Partners LLC. As of December 31, 2005, the JOll’lt venture
had made non-refundable deposits totaling $1 250 towards the purchase of a rcdevelopment project in the Florida
Keys. The joint venture agreement provides that Boykin will act as the Company Manager and perform all day to
day and development functions related to the operation of and the potential development of the property as a
hotel/condominium. Each partner is requiréd to make capital contributions into the joint venture in equal
proportions; provided, however, that once each partner has invested $1,250 of capital into the joint venture,
Boykin’s joint venture partner may elect not to make additional contributions. In the event Boykin makes
mandatory capital contributions to the joint venture in excess of $1,250 and the joint venture partner elects not to
make contributions on an equal basis, then Boykin will be entitled to a preferred return on the unequal

|
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contributions. Because of the controlling nature of Boykin’s ownership interest in this joint venture, Boykin
consolidates this joint venture into its financial statements.

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

In 1999, Boykin formed a joint venture with AEW Partners 11, L.P. (“AEW?”), an investment partnership
managed by AEW Capital Management, L.P., a Boston-based real estate investment firm. Boykin has a 25%
ownership interest in the joint venture. In the same year, the Boykin/ AEW venture formed and acquired a 75%
ownership interest in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C., which purchased a hotel in downtown Chicago, now named
Hotel 71. In 2000, Boykin purchased the remaining 25% ownership interest in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. from a
private investor thereby increasing Boykin’s total ownership percentage in the hotel to 43.75%. In March 2005,
Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. sold Hotel 71 to an unrelated third party for a price of $95,050. A portion of the net
proceeds from the sale was used to repay the outstanding balance on the mortgage for which the property served
as collateral; the remainder was or will be, following the satisfaction of all outstanding obligations of the joint
venture, distributed to the members of Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. The Boykin/AEW venture and Boykin Chicago,
L.L.C. will be dissolved following satisfaction of all outstanding obligations of the entities.

In July 2001, Boykin formed a joint venture with Concord Hospitality Enterprises (“Concord”), a privately
owned hotel investment and management company based in Raleigh, North Carolina. Boykin has a 50%
ownership interest in the joint venture, which acquired a full-service hotel in Lyndhurst, New Jersey.

Because of the non-controlling nature of Boykin’s ownership interests in these joint ventures, Boykin accounts for
these investments using the equity method. Refer to Note 9 for further discussions of the aforementioned joint
venture with AEW.

Prior to the sale of Hotel 71, Boykin’s carrying value of its investment in the joint ventures differed from its share
of the partnership equity reported in the balance sheets of the unconsolidated joint ventures due to Boykin’s cost
of its investment being in excess of the historical net book values related to the direct investment in Boykin
Chicago, L.L.C. Boykin’s additional basis was allocated to depreciable assets and depreciation was being
recognized on a straight-line basis over 30 years. When Hotel 71 was sold, the remaining balance was written off
as a reduction of the income the Partnership recognized on its investment in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C.

The following table sets forth the total assets, liabilities, revenues and net income (loss), including Boykin’s share,
related to the unconsolidated joint ventures discussed above as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005:

Boykin/ AEW Boykin/Concord

December 31, December 31,

2005 2004 2005 2004

Total ASSetS . . vttt $2,828 $65,975  $20,499  $21,069
Accrued EXPEMSES . .\ttt 1,934 2,593 578 485
QOutstanding debt ........... .. . ... — 36,116 18,078 18,398
Total liabilities . . .. ... ot 1,934 38,709 18,656 18,883
Minority Interest ... ...vvui it e 224 6,781 — —
EQUuity ..o 670 20,485 1,843 2,186
Boykin’s share of equity and minority interest ............... 488 11,999 922 1,093
Boykin's additional basis in Boykin Chicago, LL.C. ......... — 956 — —
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture ................. $ 488 $12955 $ 922 § 1,093
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Boykin/ AEW Boykin/Concord

December 31, December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Revenues ....................... A $ 2,009 $ 16,093 $14,942 $ 8,305 § 7437 $ 6,709

Hotel operating expenses ................ (2,275) (10,698) (9,836) (4,724) (4,297) (3,856)
Management fees to related party ......... (60) (483) (446) — — —

Real estate related depreciation . . . .. R (772)  (3,102) (3,099) (1,124) (1,114) (1,139)
Property taxes, insurance and other........ (434)  (1,710) (1,245) (521) (554) (537)
Operating income (loss) ................. (1,532) 100 316 1,936 1,472 1,177

Interest and other income................ 57 35 14 6 5 13

Amortization .............. . .. (133) (289) (282) (44) (151) (88)
Interest expense . ....................... (512) (1,760) (1,716) (1,107) (926) (792)
Gain on sale/disposal of assets ........... 29,518 — — — — —

Other........ ... . i (126) (1) (5) (134) (156) (578)
Net income (loss) before minority interest 27,272 (1,915) (1,673) 657 244 (268)
Boykin’s share of net income (loss) ....... 11,961 (936) (736) 329 122 (134)
Reduction of additional basis in Boykin

Chicago, L.L.C. ........ ... ... ...... (947) — — — — —

$11,014 $§ (936) $ (736) $ 329 § 122 § (134)

Taxable REIT Subsidiary Transactions

The Work Incentives Improvement Act of 1999 (“REIT Modernization Act”) amended the tax laws to permit
REITs, like Boykin, to lease hotels to a subsidiary that qualifies as a taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”) as long
as the TRS engages an independent hotel management company to operate those hotels under a management
contract. Boykin implemented this structure for certain properties previously leased to hotel management
companies effective January 1, 2002.

In conjunction with the transaction, the Partnership acquired 16 subsidiaries of BMC for consideration comprised
of limited partnership units (Note 8) and the assumption of working capital liabilities in excess of assets relating
to Westboy LLC (*Westboy”), one of the subsidiaries (Note 14).

The Partnership then contributed the acquired subsidiaries to Bellboy, Inc. (“‘Bellboy”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Partnership, or terminated the existing lease agreement with the hotel managers and re-leased
the properties to subsidiaries of Bellboy. Bellboy has elected to be treated as a TRS.

Effective September 1, 2002, Shawan Road Hotel L.P. formed a TRS, Hunt Valley Leasing, Inc. (“Hunt
Valley”), to lease the Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn. Davidson continued to manage the property until Shawan
Road Hotel L.P. sold the hotel in 2004.

The Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World which was sold during 2005, was never operated under a TRS
structure.

Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. had a TRS entity,!71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc., which leased the property until the sale
of the hotel in 2005. As the Boykin/Concord joint venture has a TRS entity, BoyCon Leasing, Inc., which leased
its property, as of December 31, 20085, all hotels Boykin had an ownership interest in were operated under the
TRS structure.

As a result of the TRS transactions discussed above, from the effective date of each transaction going forward,

the consolidated financial statements of Boykm include the operating results of the consolidated hotels under the
TRS structure. Previously, revenues recorded on the consolidated financial statements were derived primarily from
lease payment obligations which were madeé out of the net operating income of the properties; now reported
revenues reflect total operating revenues from the properties with the related operating expenses also being
reported.

Hilton Modification Agreement

Westboy, a subsidiary of Bellboy subsequent to the TRS transaction, historically leased from Boykin ten
Doubletree branded hotels which were managed by a subsidiary of Hilton Hotels Corporation (‘“Hilton”) under a
long-term management agreement. On April 30, 2003, Boykin entered into an agreement (the “Modification
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Agreement”) with Hilton to terminate the long-term management agreement. Six of the hotels continued to be
Doubletree hotels under license agreements which became effective in May 2003, and Boykin then engaged BMC
to manage the properties. One of these properties, the Doubletree Portland Downtown, was subsequently divested
in 2004. Each of the remaining four properties was subsequently sold.

The terms of the Modification Agreement included a discounted payoff of $3,600 on a $6,000 deferred incentive
management fee which had been expensed by Boykin but was not yet payable to Hilton, a $2,100 termination fee
and other professional fees related to the transaction. The approximate gain of $150 recorded on the transaction is
reflected in property taxes, insurance and other expenses in 2003.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Presentation

The separate financial statements of Boykin, the Partnership, Bellboy, Hunt Valley and the consolidated joint
ventures discussed above are consolidated because Boykin exercises control over these entities. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. Boykin believes that the results of operations
contained within the consolidated financial statements reflect all costs of Boykin doing business.

Investment in Hotel Properties

Hotel properties are stated at cost, net of any impairment charges, and are depreciated using the straight-line
method over estimated useful lives ranging from ten to 35 years for buildings and improvements and three to
20 years for furniture, fixture and equipment.

Investment in hotel properties as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

2005 2004

Land ... $ 47423 § 50,873
Buildings and improvements. . . ... ... i e 389,622 387,453
Furniture and equipment ........... ... i 60,797 60,800
Construction 1M PrOZTESS . .« ¢\ et v vttt ettt ettt 14,861 4,676
512,703 503,802

Less - Accumulated depreciation. ......... ... .o i (137,586) (120,442)

$ 375117 § 383,360

Boykin reviews the hotel properties for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value of the hotel properties may not be recoverable. Events or circumstances that may cause a review
include, but are not limited to, adverse changes in the demand for lodging at the properties due to declining
national or local economic conditions, new hotel construction in markets where the hotels are located or changes
in the expected holding period of the property. When such conditions exist, management performs an analysis to
determine if the estimated undiscounted future cash flows from operations and the proceeds from the ultimate
disposition of a hotel property exceed its carrying value. If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows are less
than the carrying amount of the asset, an adjustment to reduce the carrying amount to the related hotel property’s
estimated fair market value is recorded and an impairment loss recognized.

In 2005, Boykin identified changes in circumstances, namely the intended holding period of the property, which
indicated that the carrying value of one of its properties was impaired and accordingly recorded an impairment
charge of $5,500. In 2004 and 2003, Boykin identified changes in circumstances, namely the intended holding
period of the properties, which indicated that the carrying values of the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center and the
Holiday Inn Minneapolis West, respectively, were impaired and accordingly recorded impairment charges of
$4,300 and $2,800. The properties which incurred impairment charges during 2004 and 2003 were sold in 2004.
Boykin does not believe that there are any factors or circumstances indicating impairment of any other
investments in hotel properties at this time.

Fair market values of hotel properties are estimated through a combination of comparable property sales,
replacement cost and a discounted cash flow analysis taking into account each property’s expected cash flow
generated from operations, holding period and ultimate proceeds from disposition. In projecting the expected cash
flows from operations of the asset, the estimates are based on future projected earnings before interest expense,
income taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, and deduct expected capital expenditure requirements.
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Growth assumptions are applied to project, these amounts over the expected holding period of the asset. The
growth assumptions are based on estimated inflationary increases in room rates and expenses and the demand for
lodging at the properties, as impacted by local and national economic conditions and estimated or known future
new hotel supply. The estimated proceeds from disposition are judgmentally determined based on a combination
of antlclpated cash flow in the year of dlsposmon capitalization rate, ratio of selling price to gross hotel revenues
and selling price per room.

If actual conditions differ from the assumpﬁons, the actual results of each asset’s future operations and fair
market value could be significantly different from the estimated results and value used in the analysis.

There were no consolidated properties held for sale at December 31, 2005 and 2004, as defined within the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Boykin considers assets to be “held for sale” when they are under contract,
significant non-refundable deposits have been made by the potential buyer and the assets are immediately
available to be sold.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and in banks plus short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash held in escrow reserves under the terms of the credit facility and term notes
payable discussed in Notes 5 and 6 as well as funds held by a third party intermediary for potential use in a like-
kind exchange pursuant to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. The escrow reserves relate to the payment
of capital expenditures, real estate taxes, interest and insurance.

In the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2005, changes in restricted cash
balances are presented as an investing activity. Such changes were previously presented as an operating activity.
The accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

~ have been restated to present changes in restricted cash balances consistent with the 2005 presentation. This
restatement resulted in a $2,343 increase to 1nvest1ng cash flows and a corresponding decrease to operating cash
flows from the amounts previously reported in 2004 and a $1,851 decrease to 1nvest1ng cash flows and a
corresponding increase in operating cash flows from the amounts previously reported in 2003.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable, consisting primarily of hotel guest receivables and insurance recoveries, are stated at fair
value. Bad debt expense for the hotels owned as of December 31, 2005 was $487, $57 and $71 for 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories consisting primarily of food and beverages and gift store merchandise are stated at the lower of
first-in, first-out cost or market.

Deferred Financing Costs and Other, nét
Included in deferred financing costs and other at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were the following:

2005 2004

Financing Costs. ... ..o i $ 4476 $ 5269
Franchise fees . ... . i i 427 327
4,903 5,596

Accumulated amortization .. ........ .ttt e (2,957) (3,606)

$ 1946 $ 1,990

Deferred financing costs are being amortized using the straight-line method over the terms of the related
financing agreements, including extension options where it is the intent of Boykin to exercise such options. In
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2003, additional financing costs amounted to $1,433 and write offs due to repayments or maturities of underlying
agreements amounted to $2,226. Accumulated amortization at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $2,812 and
$3,491, respectively.

Deferred franchise fees are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related franchise
agreements. In 2005, additional franchise fees amounted to $100. Net franchise fees for 2004 have been restated
to reflect amounts related to properties sold during 2005 of $25. Accumulated amortization at December 31, 2005
and 2004 was $145 and $115, respectively.

Officers Life Insurance

Pursuant to our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer’s employment agreement, Boykin was obligated to provide
certain split-dollar life insurance benefits to him. During 2004, Boykin amended its agreement with Mr. Boykin to
provide that Mr. Boykin would surrender one policy (along with the cash surrender value of such policy) to
Boykin and the split dollar feature would be removed from the other policy. In consideration of Mr. Boykin’s
agreement to surrender one policy and remove the split dollar features from the other, the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors agreed to make a one-time payment of $416 to Mr. Boykin and increase his
annual base compensation by $40 to compensate for the current value and lost future benefit that the Company
would otherwise be required to provide. Amounts recorded for the policies totaled $793 and $924 as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as other assets. As
of December 31, 2004, there were loans against the cash surrender value of the policies related to the 2004 and
2003 premiums totaling $244 which were reflected in the consolidated balarce sheet as accounts payable and
accrued expenses.

Deferred Compensation Plans

During 2005, Boykin had nonqualified deferred compensation programs which permitted certain employees to
annually elect (via individual contracts) to defer a portion of their compensation on a pre-tax basis. To assist in
the funding of these programs, Boykin has purchased shares of mutual funds as directed by the participants and
placed them in rabbi trusts. The market value of the mutual fund shares included in other assets totaled $3,204
and $2,634 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. A liability of the equal amount is recorded within
accounts payable and accrued expenses within the consolidated financial statements as of each period. Boykin no
longer permits deferrals into these plans for compensation earned during 2005 and beyond.

Dividends

The payment of dividends on Boykin’s common shares is dependent upon the receipt of distributions from the
Partnership. The declaration of a common dividend and at what rate is subject to the discretion of Boykin’s Board
of Directors.

Dividends on the preferred shares (Note 7) are cumulative from the date of issue at the rate of 10'2% of the
liquidation preference per year and are payable quarterly in arrears based upon authorization of the Board of
Directors. Dividends will accrue whether or not Boykin has earnings, whether or not there are funds legally
available for the payment of such dividends and whether or not such dividends are declared.

Revenue Recognition

Hotel revenues — Hotel revenues, including room, food, beverage and other hotel revenues, are recognized
as the related services are delivered. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed and an allowance for
potential credit losses is provided against the portion of accounts receivable that is estimated to be
uncollectible.

Lease revenue - Boykin recognizes lease revenue for interim and annual reporting purposes on an accrual
basis pursuant to the terms of the respective percentage leases once all terms have been satisfied and
certain thresholds have been met. Boykin recognizes the revenue in accordance with Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 10I “Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements.” The adoption of SAB No. 101 impacts the interim reporting of revenues related
to Boykin’s leases for properties not operated under the TRS structure, but has no impact on its interim
cash flow or year-end results of operations.




Percentage of Completion ~ The revenue and expenses of condominium projects under construction are
recognized on the percentage of completion method upon satisfaction of the following criteria:

(a) construction is determined to 'be beyond a preliminary stage, (b) the buyer is not entitled to a refund
except for nondelivery of the unit, (c) sufficient units are under binding contract to assure the entire
property will not revert to rental property, (d) sales prices have been determined to be collectible, and
(e) aggregate sales proceeds and costs can be reasonably estimated. Beginning in 2003, Boykin
recognized revenue under percentage of completion accounting as the White Sand Villas project had
satisfied the criteria outlined above. Percentage of completion accounting involves the use of estimates for
the relation of revenues on sold units to total revenues of the project and for total cost of the project. At
December 31, 2005, the Captiva Villas project was in the preliminary stages.

Condominium Units

The related gross rental income generated by the units put back to the resort by contract for use as hotel rooms
and the units owned by Boykin is recorded: by the resort and included in hotel revenues within the consolidated
financial statements. Under the terms of the contract, a percentage of the gross rental income of each unit is to
be remitted to the respective unit owner.

White Sand Villas

During 2002, Boykin began construction of a 92-unit tower at the Pink Shell Beach Resort. The sales of all of the
91 available units in the tower closed in 2004, the proceeds had been collected and the contractors had completed
their obligations; therefore, all project revenues and related costs had been recognized as of December 31, 2004.

Boykin reported $7,541 and $32,173 in revenues and $5,509 and $21,629 in costs under the percentage of
completion method of accounting for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

All of the White Sand Villas unit owners have contracted with the resort to allow their unused room nights to be
rented out as hotel rooms. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, $2,207 and $1,188 was remitted to
third party unit owners and is included within property taxes, insurance and other in the consolidated financial
statements.

Sanibel View Villas

During 2001, Boykin completed a $2,700 renovation of a 60-unit tower at the Pink Shell Beach Resort. These
renovated studio units were sold as Sanibel fiView Villas Condominiums. The revenue related to the sale of the
units was recorded upon satisfaction of the following two criteria: (a) the profit is determinable and (b) the
earnings process is virtually complete. These criteria are generally met at the closing of the sale. Through
December 31, 2002, 40 of the units were sold; the remaining 19 available units were sold during 2003.

All of the Sanibel View unit owners have contracted with the resort to allow their unused room nights to be
rented out as hotel rooms. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, $824, $882 and $923 was
remitted to third party unit owners and is included within property taxes, insurance and other in the consolidated
financial statements. ‘

Captiva Villas

During 2003, Boykin made the decision to move forward with the plans for the final phase of redevelopment of
the Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa, which includes the demolition of two existing low-rise buildings and the
construction of a new 43-unit building. Similar to the other projects at the resort, the units in the new building
will be sold as condominiums with the prospect that the owners will put their unused room nights back to the
resort by contract for use as hotel rooms. In conjunction with the pending demolition of the existing buildings, in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No: 144 as it relates to asset abandonment, depreciation on the existing
buildings was accelerated, resulting in an additional $3,456 of depreciation in 2003. The buildings which were
previously located on the site were demolished during February 2005 and construction of the new tower
commenced late in 2005. Through December 31, 2005 and 2004, costs incurred in the preparation for and the
commencement of construction totaling $1,899 and $1,015, respectively, as well as the original $900 basis in the
land on which the new building is being constructed are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as other
assets.




Insurance Recoveries

Boykin records insurance recoveries in an amount equal to the losses recorded by the property being covered as
the losses are recognized until such time as those recoveries are deemed not probable or reasonably estimable. In
addition, Boykin recognizes income of amounts in excess of those losses to the extent that cash has been received
or a settlement has been reached and the amount is not considered to be an advance on future losses. Business
interruption recoveries are reflected as other hotel revenues within the consolidated financial statements. Property
insurance recoveries are reflected as gain on sale/disposal of assets within the consolidated financial statements.

Since September 2004, Boykin’s two hotels located in Melbourne, Florida have been closed due to damage
sustained from Hurricane Frances. Boykin has recorded business interruption insurance recoveries in the amount
of $4,007 and $1,514 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Property insurance
recoveries of $3,700 and $5,656 were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Included in accounts receivable as of December 31, 2004 was $4,669 of property damage and business
interruption insurance recoveries related to these properties. There were no outstanding receivables as of
December 31, 2005 related to insurance recoveries for these properties.

In October 2005, three of Boykin’s hotels located in southwest Florida suffered damage due to Hurricane Wilma.
Included in accounts receivable at December 31, 2005 are estimated recoveries of $332 which were recorded to
offset costs incurred and losses on disposal of damaged assets.

In 2003 and in 2005, Boykin disposed of certain assets due to water infiltration remediation activities. Property
insurance recoveries recorded during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, totaled $8,082, $3,383
and $913, respectively. Approximately $2,683 and $750 of recoveries were recognized during the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, representing a settlement of the business interruption insurance claim
related to the period in which the water infiltration remediation activities occurred. As of December 31, 2005, an
additional $21 of recoveries had been deferred until completion of the remediation, which occurred during the
first quarter of 2006.

During 2003, $1,006 of property insurance recoveries were received and recorded related to water infiltration
remediation activities at another of Boykin’s properties. These proceeds are recorded as gain on sale/disposal of
assets within the consolidated financial statements.

Fees due to service providers in connection with casualty insurance recoveries are reflected as reductions in the
gain recognized. Fees due related to business interruption insurance recoveries are reflected as corporate general
and administrative expenses within the consolidated financial statements.

As other property insurance claims are filed for repair work done at the properties, Boykin records estimated
recoveries to offset the costs incurred, less appropriate deductibles.

Minority Interests

Minority interest in the Partnership represents the limited partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the
Partnership. Income is allocated to minority interest based on the weighted average limited partnership percentage
ownership throughout the period.

Minority interest in joint ventures represents the joint venture partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the
joint ventures. Income and losses are allocated to minority interest based on the joint venture partners’ percentage
ownership throughout the period and flow of cash distributions, subject to minimum returns to the Partnership, as
defined in the joint venture agreements.

Income Taxes

Boykin qualifies as a REIT under Sections 856-860 of the Internal Revenue Code. As a REIT, Boykin is entitled
to a dividends paid deduction for certain shareholder distributions, which deduction reduces its taxable income.
Boykin is required to pay corporate income taxes on the income, if any, of its TRS subsidiaries and on any REIT
taxable income after the effect of dividend paid deductions. In certain cases, dividends paid during the
immediately subsequent year may be applied to the prior year’s dividends paid deduction; however, an excise tax
may be applicable based on the timing of such distributions.

During 2005, Boykin had REIT taxable income in excess of the dividends paid during 2005. Boykin therefore
designated the preferred dividend paid during January 2006 as a 2005 dividend. Boykin anticipates it will pay
approximately $9,500 of additional dividends during 2006 that will be designated as 2005 dividends; Boykin
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recorded an excise tax expense of $415 for 2005 relating to this anticipated timing, which is included in corporate
general and administrative expenses within the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, Boykin anticipates
it will incur an Alternative Minimum Tax which has been reflected as federal income tax within the consolidated
financial statements.

Upon the effective date of the establishment of Boykin’s TRSs, the subsidiaries became subject to federal and
state income taxes. Boykin’s TRSs account for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, Boykin has deferred tax assets of
approximately $14,309 and $10,1535, respectively, prior to any valuation allowance, related to the assumption of
the retained deficit of certain leases upon the formation of the TRSs as well as the cumulative operating losses of
the TRSs and their subsidiaries since their formation. Boykin has recorded a 100% valuation allowance against
these assets due to the uncertainty of realization and therefore, no provision or benefit from income taxes is
reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2005, the net operating
loss carry-forwards have remaining lives of approximately 17 to 20 years.

Certain of Boykin’s entities are required to pay various state and local franchise and income taxes which are
based on amounts other than net income such as gross receipts or net worth. These amounts are reflected within
corporate general and administrative expenses within the consolidated financial statements and have been deemed
immaterial for disclosure for the applicable periods.

Boykin’s earnings and profits, as defined by federal income tax law, will determine the taxability of distributions to
shareholders. Earnings and profits will differ from income reported for financial reporting purposes primarily due
to the differences in the estimated useful lives and methods used to compute depreciation, differences in timing of
certain revenue recognition, and differences in the timing of when certain expenses are deductible for tax
purposes. For federal income tax purposes, dividends to shareholders applicable to 2005, 2004 and 2003 operating
results represented the following allocations of ordinary taxable income, qualified, return of capital, 15% capital
gain and Section 1250 Gain:

Common Shares

Year Return of Capital Total
200 e e e — —
2004 . L e e — —

2003 100.0% 100.0%

Preferred Shares

Year Ordinary Income  Qualified Return of Capital 15% Capital Gain Section 1250 Gain Total

2005 ... 53.0% — — 23.9% 23.1% 100.0%
2004 .. ..., .. 89.9% 8.1% 2.0% — — 100.0%

2003 ......... 92.9% — 7.1% — — 100.0%

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period whereas diluted earnings per share adjusts the weighted average shares outstanding for the effect of all
dilutive securities. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the weighted average basic and
diluted common shares outstanding were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Basic ... e 17,566,725 17,426,458 17,336,258
Effect of dilutive securities: ‘

Common stock options . ........... .. ... .. L 144,340 28,213 18,332

Restricted share grants ...........cooiiiiiiieinneenn., 176,233 98,530 115,062

Diluted . .. 17,887,298 17,553,201 17,469,652

There are no adjustments to the reported amounts of income in computing diluted per share amounts.
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Partnership Units/Minority Interests

A total of 2,718,256 limited partnership units (Note 8) were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005 and
2004. The weighted average number of limited partnership units outstanding for each of the periods ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was also 2,718,256.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values are determined by using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies.
Boykin’s principal financial instruments are cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, borrowings
against the credit facility, the term notes payable and interest rate protection instruments.

Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and accounts receivable, due to their short maturities, are carried at
amounts which reasonably approximate fair value. As borrowings against the credit facility (Note 5) bear interest
at variable market rates, its carrying value approximates market value at December 31, 2005.

At December 31, 2005, the fair value of the $130,000 term note payable (Note 6) approximated the carrying
value as the interest rate associated with the note approximated market rates currently offered for debt with
similar risk factors, terms and maturities.

Boykin has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” This statement requires companies to carry all derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives,
in the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends
on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and, if so, on the reason for
holding it. For financial reporting purposes, the change in market value of the effective portion of an instrument
defined as a cash flow hedge flows through the other comprehensive income component of equity. All other
changes will flow through earnings.

Subject to the terms of the previously existing $108,000 term loan, Boykin was required to maintain interest rate
protection on the outstanding balance to cap the interest rate at no more than 10.25%. Changes in the fair value
of the interest rate cap were recorded through the statement of operations. The cap expired during 2005. Also
subject to the terms of the loan, in 2001, Boykin entered into an interest rate swap, which fixed the overall
interest rate at 7.32% on $83,000 of Boykin’s $108,000 term note. Changes in the contract’s fair value, if
applicable, were recorded through the statement of comprehensive income (loss). The swap expired in July 2003,
and Boykin did not renew the swap or purchase a replacement instrument.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as changes in shareholders’ equity from non-owner sources, which for Boykin
consisted of the difference between the cost basis and fair market value of its interest rate swap. For the year
ended December 31, 2003, the difference between net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) was due
to the change in the market value of the swap.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued revised SFAS No. 123 (Statement 123(R)), Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R requires all entities to recognize the fair value of share-based payment
awards (stock compensation) classified in equity, unless they are unable to reasonably estimate the fair value of
the award. Boykin adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R on July 1, 2005, using the modified prospective
approach permitted by the literature. This approach requires that any unvested portion of options at the time of
adoption be expensed in the earnings statement over the remaining service period of those options. Boykin has
historically issued options under its long-term incentive plans (“LTIPs”), which are described more fully in
Note 11. At the time of adoption, there were no unvested options. Vested options continue to be accounted for
under the disclosure only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and applies
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its employee share
option plan. If Boykin had elected to recognize compensation costs for the LTIP based on the fair value at the
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grant dates for option awards consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, reported amounts of net
income (loss) and income (loss) per share would have been changed to the pro forma amounts indicated below.

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Pro Forma Pro Forma Pro Forma

Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders............ $24,971 $(4911)  $(8,177)

Stock-based employee compensation éxpense ..................... — (126) (126)

Proforma net income (loss) attributahle to common shareholders.... $24,971 $£(5,037)  $(8,303)
Proforma net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders per

share:
Basic. ... .. $ 142 $ (029) § (0.48)
Diluted........................ P e $ 140 $ (0.29) $ (0.48)

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretatlon No. 47 (“FIN 477}, “Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” FIN 47 refers to a legal obligation to
perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional on a future
event that may or may not be within the cbntrol of the entity. An entity is required to recognize a liability for the
fair value of a conditional asset retirement ‘obhgatlon if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated.
The fair value of a liability for the conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized when incurred,
generally upon acquisition, construction, or. development and through the normal operation of the asset. This
interpretation is effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after December 31, 2005. Adoption did not

have a material effect on Boykin’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.” SFAS No. 154
replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes” and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in
Interim Financial Statements.” SFAS No. 154 requires that a voluntary change in accounting principle be applied
retrospectively with all prior period financial statements presented on the new accounting principle unless it is
impracticable to do so. SFAS No. 154 also; provides that a change in method of depreciating or amortizing a
long-lived nonfinancial asset be accounted for as a change in estimate effected by a change in accounting
principle and that correction of errors in previously issued financial statements should be termed a “restatement.”
SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and correction of errors made in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. Early adoption of this standard is permitted for accounting changes and corrections of errors
made in fiscal years beginning after June 1, 2005. Boykin believes that implementing SFAS No. 154 should not
have a material impact on its financial position and results of operations.

In June 2005, the Emerging Issues Task Force released Issue No. 04-5 “Determining Whether a General Partner,
or the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners
Have Certain Rights” (“EITF 04-5"). EITF 04-5 creates a framework for evaluating whether a general partner
or a group of general partners controls a limited partnership or a managing member or a group of managing
members controls a limited liability company and therefore should consolidate the entity. EITF 04-5 states that
the presumption of general partner or managing member control would be overcome only when the limited
partners or non-managing members have certain specific rights as outlined in EITF 04-5. EITF 04-5 is effective
immediately for all newly formed limited partnerships and for existing limited partnership agreements that are
modified. EITF 04-5 is not expected to have a material impact on Boykin’s results of operations or financial
position.

In September of 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) re-circulated an exposure draft of a
final standard on earnings per share (“EPS™) entitled “Earnings per Share — an Amendment to FAS 128.” The
final standard is now expected to be issued with an expected effective date for Boykin as of June 30, 2006. The
standard will require retrospective application for all prior periods presented. The significant proposed changes to
the EPS computation are changes to the treasury stock method and contingent share guidance for computing
year-to-date diluted EPS, removal of the ability to overcome the presumption of share settlement when
computing diluted EPS when there is a choice of share or cash settlement and inclusion of mandatorily
convertible securities in basic EPS. Boykin does not expect adoption of the standard to have a material impact on
earnings per share.




Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform with the current year
presentation.

3. Hotel Transactions:

The following table summarizes Boykin’s hotel acquisition and dispositions in 2005, 2004 and 2003:

Percentage
Acquisition/ Number of Purchase/ owned by

Hotel Location Disposition Date Rooms Sale Price  Partnership  Manager
Acquisition:
Radisson Suite Beach Resort Marco Island, FL August 2003 233 $27,250 100% BMC
Dispositions:
Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World  San Diego, CA November 2005 199 $23,000 91%  Outrigger

Lodging

Services
Clarion Hotel & Conference Center Yakima, WA June 2005 208 $ 4,200 100%  Chambers

Group

French Lick Springs Resort & Spa French Lick, IN April 2005 485 $25,000 100% BMC
Hotel 71 Chicago, IL March 2005 454 $95,050 43.75% BMC
Ramada Inn Bellevue Center Bellevue, WA November 2004 208 $ 9,800 100% BMC
Radisson Hotel Mount Laurel Mount Laurel, NJ September 2004 283 $14,250 100% BMC
Holiday Inn Minneapolis West Minneapolis, MN August 2004 196 $ 9,325 91% BMC
Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn Hunt Valley, MD July 2004 392 $31,000 91%  Davidson
Doubletree Portland Downtown Portland, OR March 2004 235 $22,000 100% BMC
Doubletree Spokane Valley Spokane, WA August 2003 237 $ 5,400 100% Hilton
Springfield Springfield, OR July 2003 234 $ 6,500 100% Hilton
Holiday Inn Lake Norman Charlotte, NC June 2003 119 $ 2,550 100% BMC
Hampton Inn Lake Norman Charlotte, NC February 2003 117 $ 3,700 100% BMC
Knoxville Hilton Knoxville, TN February 2003 317 $11,500 100% BMC

The operating results of the Radisson Suite Beach Resort are included in the consolidated operating results of
Boykin starting on the date of acquisition.

4. Discontinued Operations:

The provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” require
that hotels sold or held for sale be treated as discontinued operations. Boykin considers assets to be “held for
sale” when they are under contract, significant non-refundable deposits have been made by the potential buyer
and the assets are immediately available to be sold.

During 2003, Boykin sold its French Lick Springs Resort and Spa located in French Lick, Indiana, the Clarion
Hotel & Conference Center located in Yakima, Washington, and the Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World
in San Diego, California for an aggregate price of $52,200. The proceeds from the French Lick Springs Resort
and Spa and the Clarion Hotel & Conference Center were used for general corporate purposes. The sale of the
Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World was structured to qualify as a potential like-kind exchange pursuant
to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code, therefore, proceeds were held by a third party intermediary.

During 2004, Boykin disposed of the Doubletree Portland Downtown, Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn, the Holiday
Inn Minneapolis West, the Radisson Hotel Mount Laurel and the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center for aggregate
proceeds of $86,375. The proceeds from the acquisition of the Doubletree Portiand Downtown by the City of
Portland through its power of eminent domain, were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the $130,000 term
loan and for general corporate purposes. The proceeds from the sales of Marriott’s Hunt Valley Inn and the
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Holiday Inn Minneapolis West were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. The proceeds
from the sales of the Radisson Hotel Mount Laurel and the Ramada Inn Bellevue Center were used to reduce
the outstanding balance on the credit facility and for general corporate purposes.

During 2003, Boykin sold the Knoxville H11t0n the Hampton Inn Lake Norman, the Holiday Inn Lake Norman,
a hotel in Springfield, Oregon and the Doubletree Spokane Valley for aggregate proceeds of $29,650. The net
proceeds of the Knoxville Hilton, Hampton Inn Lake Norman and Holiday Inn Lake Norman were applied to
the $108,000 term loan in connection with a release of the assets as security for the loan. Net proceeds from the
sale of the Springfield hotel and the Doubletree Spokane Valley were used to pay off outstanding amounts on
Boykin’s previously existing credit facility’as well as for general corporate purposes.

The assets and liabilities of the French Lick Springs Resort and Spa and the Clarion Hotel & Conference Center
sold in 2005 and of the joint venture which owned and leased out the Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea
World sold in 2005 as of December 31, 2004 and the results of operations of the properties through the 2005 sale
date and for years ended December 31, 2004, and 2003, have been reclassified as discontinued operations in the
accompanying financial statements. The oi)eratlng results of the five propertles sold during each 2004 and 2003
have also been reclassified as d1scont1nued operations in the accompanying financial statements. Interest expense
and deferred loan costs have been attrlbutcd to the properties, as applicable, based upon the term loan amounts
that were repaid with the proceeds of the salcs

The results of operations and the ﬁnanc1al position related to the applicable properties and joint venture were as
follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Lease TeVEIMUE . . .\ttt e e e $2547 § 2,045 $ 1,958
Hotel revenues . ... i 2,933 34,607 60,774
Hotel operating eXpenses . .. .......uuuneerinn e iiinenn... (3,817)  (29,941)  (49,544)
Management fees to related party .. ....... ... ... i (56) (607) (782)
Management fees —other........... e (19) (252) (808)
Property taxes, insurance and other ........... ... ... ... ... ...... (250) (1,751) (3,340)
Other EXPeMSES ottt it e e (19) (93) (76)
Interest iMCOME . . oottt ittt i i it 17 24 23
Other INCOme . ... .o e e e — 40 53
Interest @XPenSe ... ..ottt e e — (200) (1,307)
Real estate related depreciation and amortization .................. (745) (4,402) (7,650)
Impairment of real estate ........... .. ... it — (4,300) (2,800)
Amortization of deferred financing COSES .o — (87) (200)
Minority interest in (earnings) loss of Jomt Ventures .. .............. (1,719) (2,236) 1,102
Gain (loss) on sale of individual assets ........................... 366 (3) 550
Gain (loss) on sale of property...... P 22,716 9,908 770
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . .................... $21,954 § 2,752 § (1,277)
December 31,

2004

Accounts receivable, NEt ... .. . $ 480
Receivables from lessee ............ e e e 10
INVentorIes . .. . e 431
[ 14 115 g 1311 - U PR 1,043
Deferred financing costs and other, net ....... ... . . . L 24
Investment in hotel properties, net ........ ... . 27,435
Total ASSEES . . .ot $29,423
Accounts payable and accrued €XPenSes .. ... ..ot e $ 1,425
Accounts payable to related party. .. ... o )
MINOMty INTETESt . . .. oo e 951
Total Habilities. . . .. oo vttt e e $ 2,369




5. Credit Facility:

As of December 31, 2005, Boykin had a secured, revolving credit facility with a financial institution which
enabled Boykin to borrow up to $100,000, subject to borrowing base and loan-to-value limitations. The credit
facility was expanded during 2005 from $60,000 and four properties were added as security for the facility. Boykin
had borrowings of $40,000 and $6,446 under this facility at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
facility will be reduced to $60,000 effective July 1, 2006 and matures during October 2006 and bears interest at a
floating rate of LIBOR plus 3.75% (8.19% at December 31, 2005). Boykin is required to pay a fee of 0.375% on
the unused portion of the credit facility. The facility was secured by nine properties with a net carrying value of
$89,463 at December 31, 2005 and five properties with a net carrying value of $53,655 at December 31, 2004.

The credit facility requires Boykin, among other things, to maintain a minimum net worth, a coverage ratio of
EBITDA to debt service, a coverage ratio of EBITDA to debt service and fixed charges and a maximum leverage
ratio. Further, Boykin is required to maintain the franchise agreement at each hotel and to maintain its REIT
status. The terms of the agreement provide certain restrictions on common share dividends; however, Boykin is
entitled to distribute sufficient dividends to maintain its REIT status. Boykin was in compliance with its covenants
at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

6. Term Notes Payable:

Red Lion Inns Operating L.P. (“OLP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership, has a $130,000 term loan
agreement that expires in June 2023 and may be prepaid without penalty after May 21, 2008. The outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $98,529 and $102,414, respectively. The loan bears interest at a
fixed rate of 6.9% until May 2008, and at a new fixed rate to be determined thereafter. The loan was secured by
six Doubletree hotels with a net carrying value of $182,867 and $189,333 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The loan requires principal repayments based on a 25-year amortization schedule. Under covenants
in the loan agreement, assets of OLP are not available to pay the creditors of any other Boykin entity, except to
the extent of permitted cash distributions from OLP to Boykin. Likewise, the assets of other Boykin entities are
not available to pay the creditors of OLP. The loan agreement also requires OLP to hold funds in escrow for the
payment of capital expenditures, insurance and real estate taxes and requires OLP to maintain certain financial
reporting requirements. OLP was in compliance with these requirements at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Boykin Holding, LLC (“BHC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership, had a $108,000 term loan
agreement. In connection with the sale of the Knoxville Hilton, the Hampton Inn Lake Norman and the Holiday
Inn Lake Norman in 2003, the loan balance was reduced to $91,125. The loan had an initial maturity date of
July 2003. Boykin exercised its options to extend the maturity date to July 2005. The loan was repaid in June
2005. As of December 31, 2004, the loan was secured by six hotel properties with a net carrying value of $65,916.
The term loan bore interest at a rate that fluctuated at LIBOR plus 2.35% (4.63% at December 31, 2004). Under
covenants in the loan agreement, assets of BHC were not available to pay the creditors of any other Boykin
entity, except to the extent of permitted cash distributions from BHC to Boykin. Likewise, the assets of other
entities were not available to pay the creditors of BHC. The loan agreement also required BHC to hold funds in
escrow for the payment of capital expenditures, insurance, interest and real estate taxes and required BHC to
maintain certain financial reporting requirements. BHC was in compliance with these requirements at

December 31, 2004.

Boykin previously had an outstanding term loan which had an original balance of $45,000 and was secured by
three hotel properties. Boykin used a portion of the net proceeds from the preferred stock offering in October
2002 (Note 7) to reduce the outstanding loan balance to $41,967. The loan bore interest at a rate that fluctuated
at LIBOR plus 2.0% to LIBOR plus 4.0%. In October 2003, Boykin used a portion of the proceeds from the new
credit facility to repay the entire outstanding balance of $41,967.

As a part of normal business activities, Boykin issues letters of credit through major banking institutions as
required by certain debt and insurance agreements. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were no letters of
credit outstanding. As of December 31, 2005, Boykin has not entered into any significant other off-balance sheet
financing arrangements.

F-22




Maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

20006 . o $ 4,166
2007 . o 4,448
2000 . 4,788
2000 . 5,134
2000 L 5,505
2011 and thereafter . ... ... i 74,488

$98,529

7. Description of Capital Shares:
Common Shares

Holders of Boykin’s common shares are entitled to receive dividends, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors, out of funds legally available therefore. The holders of common shares, upon any liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of Boykin, are entitled to share ratably in any assets remaining after payment in full of
all liabilities of Boykin and all preferences \\Of the holders of any outstanding preferred shares. The common shares
possess ordinary voting rights, each share entlthng the holder thereof to one vote. Holders of common shares do
not have cumulative voting rights in the election of directors and do not have preemptive rights.

Preferred Shares

The Board of Directors is authorized to provide for the issuance of two classes of preferred shares, each in one or
more series, to establish the number of shares in each series and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and
rights (other than voting rights) of each series and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereon. Because
the Board of Directors has the power to establish the preferences and rights of each series of preferred shares, the
Board of Directors may afford the holders of any series of preferred shares preferences, powers and rights. The
issuance of preferred shares could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of Boykin. As a
result of the preferred offering in October 2002 as discussed below, there were 181,000 preferred shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

In October 2002, Boykin completed an underwritten public offering of 1,800,000 preferred depositary shares. Each
depositary share represents a 1/10 interest in one share of Boykin’s 10':% Class A Cumulative Preferred Shares,
Series 2002-A, and has a liquidation preference of $25 per share. Dividends on the depositary shares are payable
quarterly, upon authorization by the Board of Directors, beginning on January 15, 2003 at an annual rate of
$2.625 per depositary share and are senior to the common shares. The shares are listed and traded on the New
York Stock Exchange. The shares do not have a stated maturity and are not subject to any sinking fund or
mandatory redemption provisions. Net proceeds from the offering were used to repay the outstanding balance on
the previously existing credit facility and pay down $3,033 on the previously existing $45,000 term note (Note 6).
An additional 10,000 depositary shares were later issued to cover over-allotments.

8. Limited Partnership Interests:

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the minority interest limited partners of the Partnership have exchange
rights which enable them to cause the Partnership to pay cash for their interests in the Partnership or, at Boykin’s
election, to exchange common shares for such interests. The exchange rights may be exercised in whole or in
part. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were 2,718,256 minority interest limited partnership units
outstanding. The number of shares issuable upon exercise of the exchange rights will be adjusted upon the
occurrence of stock splits, mergers, consolidations or similar pro rata share transactions, which otherwise would
have the effect of diluting the ownership interests of the limited partners or the sharecholders of Boykin.

Boykin owns a corresponding Series A Preferred equity interest in the Partnership that entitles it to income and
distributions in amounts equal to the dividends payable on the Series A Preferred shares discussed in Note 7.

9. Joint Venture with AEW:

In February 1999, Boykin formed a joint venture with AEW. Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, AEW has
contributed $22,396 of equity capital into the joint venture. Boykin has contributed $7,465, has served as the
operating partner of the joint venture for which it receives compensation from the joint venture, and has the right
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to receive incentive returns based on the performance of acquired assets. Because of the non-controlling nature of
its ownership interest in the joint venture, Boykin accounts for its investment utilizing the equity method.

In August 1999, the Boykin/AEW venture partnered with a private investor, forming Boykin Chicago, L.L.C., in
which Boykin/AEW has a 75% interest. Boykin Chicago, L.L..C. purchased Hotel 71, located in Chicago, Illinois
for cash consideration of $48,000. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and was funded with proceeds
from a $30,000 secured mortgage note with the remainder in cash from the partners. In September 2000, Boykin
purchased the 25% interest in Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. from the private investor for $6,270, thereby increasing
Boykin’s total ownership interest in the hotel from 18.75% to 43.75%. A subsidiary of BMC leased the property
pursuant to a long-term percentage lease agreement, which was terminated on June 30, 2001. Subsequently, a
TRS of Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. entered into a management agreement with the subsidiary of BMC to manage
the property.

In March 2005, Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. sold Hotel 71 to an unrelated third party for a price of $95,050. A
portion of the net proceeds from the sale were used to repay the outstanding balance on the mortgage for which
the property served as collateral; the remainder was or will be, following the satisfaction of all outstanding
obligations of the joint venture, distributed to the members of Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. The Boykin/AEW venture
and Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. will be dissolved following completion of all outstanding obligations of the entities.

10. Percentage Lease Agreements:

Rent due under percentage leases is the greater of minimum rent, as defined, or percentage rent. Percentage rent
applicable to room and other hotel revenues varies by lease and is calculated by multiplying fixed percentages by
the total amounts of such revenues over specified threshold amounts. Both the minimum rent and the revenue
thresholds used in computing percentage rents applicable to room and other hotel revenues are typically subject to
annual adjustments based on increases in the United States Consumer Price Index (“CPI”). Effective January 1,
2002, the majority of Boykin’s hotels were leased to consolidated subsidiaries under the TRS structure (Note 1).

Percentage lease revenues related to the hotel owned during the three year period ended December 31, 2005 that
was not operated under the TRS structure were $2,547, $2,045 and $1,958 respectively, for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, of which approximately $1,366, $673 and $611, respectively, was in excess of
minimum rent. Boykin sold the hotel in November 2005, therefore, these amounts are reflected as discontinued
operations within the consolidated financial statements.

11. Share Compensation Plans:

Boykin has two long-term incentive plans (“LTIPs”) which provide for the granting to officers and eligible
employees of incentive or nonqualified share options, restricted shares, deferred shares, share purchase rights and
share appreciation rights in tandem with options, or any combination thereof. Boykin has reserved 2,200,000
common shares for issuance under the LTIPs.

Share Option Plan

The following summarizes information related to share option activity in 2005, 2004 and 2003:

Weighted Average Per
Number of Options Share Exercise Price

Outstandingat]anuary1,2003.......................;:.... 839,139 $11.24
Options granted (officers and employees) ................... —
Options exercised/forfeited/expired .. ...................... —

Outstanding at December 31,2003 .................. ... .... 839,139 $11.24
Options granted .. ...... ... ... i —

Options exercised/forfeited/expired . . ...................... —

Outstanding at December 31,2004 .......................... - 839,139 $11.24
Options granted . ... .. .. i e — —
Options exercised/forfeited/expired . ....................... (15,000) $ 7.85

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 .......... ... ............ 824,139 $11.30




Weighted Average Exercisable Options

Options Fair Value of Weighted Average Per
Year Granted Options Granted  Options Qutstanding Share Exercise Price
2005 .. — — 824,139 $11.30
2004 ...l N W — — 613,006 $12.21
2003 ... : — — 518,539 $12.87

As of December 31, 2005, information related to outstanding options was as follows:

Total/ Exercisable Options
Weighted Average = Weighted Average

Range of Options Per Share Remaining
Exercise Prices . Outstanding Exercise Price Contractual Life
$7.295 = $8.40. . . ..\t 464,000 $ 8.00 6.0 years
B10.938 — 13,75 o 235,139 $12.36 3.5 years
$20.00-825.626. ... .. 125,000 $21.52 1.1 years
824,139 $11.30 4.6 years

Options vest over various periods ranging from one to nine years from the date of grant. In addition, certain
outstanding options were also subject to vesting based upon financial performance targets. The term of each
option granted will not exceed ten years from date of grant, and the exercise price may not be less than 100% of
the fair market value of Boykin’s common shares on the grant date.

During 2005, an employee vested in 150,000 options in accordance with an employment agreement entered into
during 2002. The options had contingent vesting features and therefore were treated as variable options in
accordance with SFAS No. 123. Boykin recognized $617 of compensation expense at the time of satisfaction of
the contingent requirements as all other vesting requirements had been previously satisfied.

Restricted Share Grant Plan

The following table summarizes Boykin’s restricted share grant activity related to its officers, eligible employees
and non-employee directors.

2005 2004
Restricted shares outstanding - beginning of year ............................ 334,784 288,740
New Share grants . ... ...ttt e e e e 204,000 174,789
Shares cancelled ....... ... . . — —
Shares vested . .................... L (144,357)  (128,745)
Restricted shares outstanding —end of year ..................... ... ... 394,427 334,784

The restricted shares have vesting periods ranging from immediate vesting to five years from the date of grant.
The value of shares granted has been calculated based on the average of the high and low share price on the date
of grant and is being amortized as compensation expense over the respective vesting periods. For the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, Boykin’s compensation expense related to these restricted shares was $1,538,
$1,009 and $756, respectively. As of December 31, 2005, the unearned compensation related to restricted share
grants was $2,498 and has been classified as a component of shareholders’ equity in the accompanying balance
sheet.

12. Employee Benefit Plans:

Boykin maintains two employee benefit plans, the Boykin Lodging Company Money Purchase Pension Plan and
the Boykin Lodging Company Profit Sharing Plan. Both plans are defined contribution plans which were
established to provide retirement benefits to eligible employees. Boykin’s contributions to these plans for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled $340, $292 and $290, respectively.
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13. Commitments:

Portions of land related to four of the hotels owned by Boykin as of December 31, 2005 are subject to land leases
which expire at various dates through 2068. All leases require minimum annual rentals, and one lease requires
percentage rent based on hotel revenues. The other three leases are adjusted for increases in CPI every one to ten
years. Rental expense charged to operations related to these leases for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003 was $1,075, $847 and $861, respectively for continuing operations. Rental expense charged to operations
related to discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled $10, $36 and
$59, respectively.

Boykin entered into a lease agreement which expires in January 2008 for the office space currently used by
Boykin and BMC and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to a shared services and office space arrangement, BMC
reimburses Boykin for its proportionate share of the cost of the space used under the lease agreement. Boykin’s
expense charged to operations related to its proportionate share of the utilized space for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $80, $71 and $75, respectively. Amounts reimbursed from BMC for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $161, $146 and $147, respectively.

As a part of normal operations, Boykin has numerous operating leases related to the hotels in its portfolio or its
corporate office. Additionally, as a part of ongoing capital improvement projects at the hotels and corporate
offices, purchase obligations are often entered into.

Boykin’s annual obligations to make future minimum payments under the land lease agreements (excluding future
CPI increases), the office space lease, other operating leases and purchase obligations which are not required to
be reflected in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 are as follows:

2006 . L e e $ 6,353
2007 o 1,178
200 . e 829
2000 . o 697
2000 e 651
2011 and thereafter . ... . e e 25,107

$34,815

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, as of December 31, 2005 Boykin has also entered into various
franchise, management and other lease agreements that are contingent upon future results of operations of the
hotels in its portfolio and provide for potential termination fees dependent upon the timing and method of
termination of such agreements. A Boykin subsidiary has entered into 37 sales contracts for the sale of Captiva
Villas hotel-condominium units at the Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa. The contracts provide a guarantee to each
purchaser that their unit will be substantially complete within two years following the date of the sales contract
unless such failure is due to circumstances beyond the control of the subsidiary which constitute impossibility of
performance under Florida law. The first sales contract for a Captiva Villas unit was entered into in July of 2004.
Twenty-one of the outstanding contracts were entered into during 2004 and six were entered into during the first
quarter of 2005. Currently, the subsidiary anticipates that the project will be substantially complete during the
first quarter of 2007. Unless the subsidiary can demonstrate that such circumstances were beyond its control, it
will fail to satisfy this requirement for all or some portion of the twenty-seven contracts entered into during 2004
and the first quarter of 2005.

Upon purchasing the Doubletree Kansas City in 1997, Boykin assumed certain obligations related to a tax
increment financing (“TIF”). The hotel is subject to a lease (the “Lease”) with the City of Kansas City (the
“City”), which provides for rent payments equal to the debt service related to the Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds
(Municipal Auditorium and the 13th and Wyandotte Hotel Redevelopment Projects), Series 1996 (the “Bonds”),
issued by the Land Clearance for Redevelopment Authority of Kansas City, Missouri (the “Authority”), offset by
incremental tax and parking revenues received by the City which are generated by the project, including real
estate tax revenues and special assessments paid by the hotel and parking rental payments made by the hotel plus
a credit enhancement fee. Revenues received by the City have, and are expected to continue to, fully offset rent
payments which would otherwise be due pursuant to the Lease other than the credit enhancement fee. The
present value of the fixed and determinable payments to be made pursuant to a special assessment, credit
enhancement fees and a garage management agreement have been reflected as liabilities totaling $5,977 and
$6,077 in Boykin’s financiai statements as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, in accordance with the
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provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force' 91-10, “Accounting for Special Assessments and Tax Increment
Financing Entities.” ‘

The City and the Authority have the right, commencing in 2006 and upon no less than 12 months notice, to
require Boykin Kansas City LLC, owner of the hotel and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership, to purchase
certain property (including the land under the hotel and parking areas) at a price based primarily on the
redemption price of the Bonds (the “Purchase”) The balance on the Bonds as of December 31, 2005 was
$13,660. Under certain circumstances, thls Purchase may be delayed by Boykin Kansas City LLC for up to two
years. In the event the City requires Boykm Kansas City LLC to complete the Purchase and redeem the Bonds,
the City has indicated that it will continue to make the incremental tax revenues available to support a
refinancing of the Bonds. The hotel serves as collateral for the Lease and certain other obligations of Boykin
Kansas City LLC. i

14. Related Party Transactions:

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Boykin is the majority shareholder of BMC.

As a result of the TRS transaction discussed in Note 1, Boykin acquired 16 subsidiaries of BMC whose primary
assets were leasehold interests in 25 hotel properties owned by Boykin for consideration comprised of

1,427,142 limited partnership units valued at approximately $11,400 (based upon the average closing price of the
common shares for the five-day period prier to the closing of the transaction), and the assumption of $1,600 of
working capital liabilities in excess of assets relating to Westboy. In connection with these events, Boykin’s Board
of Directors established a special committee (the “Special Committee”), consisting only of independent directors,
to evaluate and negotiate the transactions with BMC. In determining the amount of the consideration paid to
BMC, the Special Committee considered, 'among other things, the expected profitability of the entities acquired
offset by the expected costs of management fees and income taxes to be incurred by the TRS following the
transaction. The Special Committee also took into account the benefits of expected operational efficiencies as well
as the elimination of potential lease termination fees upon the sale of hotels. The Special Committee was advised
by independent counsel and financial advisors. Boykin believes that the methodology used to determine the
consideration paid to BMC was reasonable.

Also in conjunction with the TRS transaction, effective January 1, 2002, BMC assumed management of 16 of the
consolidated properties in which Boykin owned an interest. Additionally, during October 2002, BMC assumed
management of the Doubletree Kansas City and the Pink Shell Beach Resort and Spa after Boykin terminated
the previously existing management agreements with Interstate Hotels and Resorts (“Interstate”). During 2003,
BMC assumed management of seven other hotels in conjunction with the Hilton Modification Agreement as
discussed in Note 1 and assumed management of the Holiday Inn Minneapolis West after Boykin terminated the
previously existing management agreement, with Interstate. Management fees earned by BMC related to the
continuing operations of these hotels during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled $5,635,
$5,455 and $3,976, respectively. Management fees earned by BMC related to discontinued operations totaled $56,
$607 and $782 for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. An additional $28, $25 and $12 was paid during 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively, for other services provided pursuant to the management agreements.

The management agreements between Boykin and BMC were approved by the independent members of Boykin’s
Board of Directors. ‘

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, Boykih had related party payables to BMC of $1,145 and $1,063, primarily
related to management fees and reimbursements of expenses on behalf of the hotel properties.

Boykin Chicago L.L.C. had entered into a management agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of BMC to
manage Hotel 71 prior to its sale. Managerent and other fees earned by the subsidiary was $60, $483 and $446
during 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. An additional $1 was paid for other services provided pursuant to the
management agreement for each of the yedrs ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. During 2004 and 2003, fees of
$1 and $12 were paid to a wholly owned sub51dlary of BMC for design services related to capital improvements at
the hotel.

During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, Boykin paid a wholly-owned subsidiary of

BMC $277, $329 and $630, respectively, for design and project management services and for reimbursement of
expenses related to capital improvements at its consolidated hotels. During 2001, a subsidiary of BMC sold a
portion of its business to an unrelated third/party. A portion of the sales price is payable contingent upon future
revenues of the business, including revenues from Boykin. During 2003, 2004 and 2003, an additional $37, $53
and $59 of sales proceeds was provided to BMC as a result of purchases made by Boykin.
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Fees paid to BMC and its subsidiaries for services which are not subject to management agreements are at
market prices as determined by the independent members of the Board of Directors. The Board’s market price
determinations are based on market checks performed by management and outside independent consultants from
time to time, comparative information provided by BMC, and industry publications.

Boykin believes that the methodologies used for determining the amounts to be paid to BMC and its subsidiaries
for management and other services are reasonable.

15. Statements of Cash Flows, Supplemental Disclosures:

As of both December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were $1,188 of dividends and Partnership distributions which were
declared but not paid.

Interest paid during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 was $11,956, $13,922 and $16,743,
respectively. Federal income taxes paid during the year ended December 31, 2005 totaled $75.

Cash flows from discontinued operations are combined with the cash flows from continuing operations in the
consolidated statements of cash flows. For 2005, cash flows related to discontinued operations approximated
$31,000 including sales proceeds. Additionally, cash flows related to the sale of the Hotel 71 property contributed
approximately $23,500 to cash flows provided by investing activities.

16. Quarterly Operating Results (Unaudited):

Boykin’s unaudited consolidated quarterly operating data for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
follows. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a
fair presentation of quarterly results have been reflected in the data. Quarterly operating results are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be achieved in succeeding quarters or years. Per share amounts may not add due to
rounding.

For the 2005 Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Total TEVENUES . . oot e $53,346  $54,494 $51,128 $45,517
Income (loss) attributable to common shareholders before

discontinued operations ................ ... i 15,650 (895) (2,832) (5,642)
Discontinued operations, net of minority interest ............. (945) 6,934 755 11,946
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders....... 14,705 6,039 (2,077) 6,304

Income (loss) attributable to common shareholders before
discontinued operations per share:

BasiC. . e 0.89 (0.05) (0.16) (0.32)

Diluted ... ..o 0.89 (0.05) (0.16) {0.32)
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders per

share:

Basic. . ... e 0.84 0.34 (0.12) 0.36

Diluted ... ..o 0.83 0.34 (0.12) 0.35

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

(in thousands):
Basic. .. 17,534 17,544 17,594 17,594
Diluted .. ... 17,650 17,789 17,993 17,943
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For the 2004 Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

TOtal TEVEMUES -« « o oo ettt e e et e e e e e $51,729  $52,159 $53,458 $46,555
Loss attributable to common shareholders before discontinued

OPETATIONS .+« . vttt ettt e (952) (823) (782) {4,694)
Discontinued operations, net of minority interest ............. (3,558) 456 5,503 (61)
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders. ... ... (4,510) (367) 4,721 (4,755)

Loss attributable to common shareholders before discontinued
operations per share:

Basic. .. ... (0.05) (0.05) (0.04) 0.27)

Diluted ... ... . e (0.05) (0.05) (0.04) (0.27)
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders per

share:

Basic. ... . (0.26) (0.02) 0.27 (0.27)

Diluted .. ... (0.26) (0.02) 0.27 (0.27)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding (in .

thousands):

Basic. ... ... 17,397 17,412 17,447 17,450

Diluted .. ... 17,574 17,446 17,529 17,587

17. Subsequent Events:

In January 2006, Marathon Partners, LLC, a joint venture in which Boykin owns 50%, purchased the Banana Bay
Resort & Marina — Marathon for $12,000 using capital contributions from the joint venture partners as well as
proceeds from a $7,800 mortgage loan secured by the property. The resort, which comprises 65 guestrooms on ten
acres, was acquired for potential redevelopment as a condo-hotel project.

During January 2006, the potential like-kind exchange pursuant to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code
which resulted from the sale of the Hampton Inn San Diego Airport/Sea World was cancelled, and the cash held
by a third party intermediary was released from restriction and transferred into Boykin’s operating cash.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Members of
Boykin/AEW, LLC and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Boykin/ AEW, LLC and Subsidiaries
(“Boykin/ AEW™) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
members’ equity and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2005. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The Company is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Boykin/AEW as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. Schedule I1I is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
February 28, 2006




REPORT OF INDEPENDﬁNT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Members of ‘
Boykin/AEW, LLC and Subsidiaries

We have audited the consolidated statements of operations, members’ equity and cash flows of Boykin/AEW,
LLC and Subsidiaries (“Boykin/AEW”) for the year ended December 31, 2003. These financial statements are
the responsibility of Boykin/AEW’s management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and td1sclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used anq significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We} believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of
operations, members’ equity and cash flows tof Boykin/AEW for the year ended December 31, 2003 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & ToucHE LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 12, 2004

F.-33



BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS

Investment il Botel PrOPEITY . . ..o vttt e e e e e e e
Accumulated depreciation. . ...ttt e

Investment in hotel property — met .. ... .. .
Cash and cash equivalents .......................... RN
Restricted cash . .. ... .. e e
ACCOUNtS TECEIVADIE . . . o e
Deferred expenses —Net. ... ..ottt e e e e
Other a8t L. i

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Mortgage note payable ... ... ..
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ... ... .. e
Minority interest in JOIMt VEIIULE . . ..o vttt ettt ettt e et e e

MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Contributed capital .. ... ... e
Distributions in excess of INCOME . . .. ..ottt e e e

Total members” equity. . ...t e

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2005 2004

$ — $ 75160
—  (11,489)

— 63,671

284 1.646
2,523 —
21 404

— 33

— 221

$ 2828 $ 65975
$ — $36116
1,934 2.593
224 6,781
29.476 29.476
(28,806)  (8.991)
670 20,485

S 2828 $ 65975




BOYKIN{AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDA”I%ED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

2005 2004 2003
Revenues:
Hotel revenues: 1
Rooms ..............civiniiiit. P $ 1,842 $14,131 $12,929
Food and beverage ................ b 56 973 1,301
Other ............. ... ........... R RERRRTS 111 989 712
Total revenues . ..., R 2,009 16,093 14,942
Expenses:
Hotel operating expenses:
ROOMS o e 906 4,129 3,475
Food and beverage .. ...ttt i e e e 149 394 1,378
Other ..o 92 387 338
General and administrative . ....... . .. . . e 512 1,783 1,258
Marketing and franchise. ... ....... ... i 205 1,785 1,862
Utilities and maintenance . ............ .. uuurme e 411 1,720 1,525
Management fees — related party. .. ... e 60 483 446
Total hotel operating expenses. .. ...... f ................................ 2,335 11,181 10,282
Property taxes and insurance and other ................. ... ... ... ... 385 1,514 1,054
Real estate related depreciation and amortization. . ........................ 772 3,102 3,099
Asset management fees ............... L 49 196 191
Total Operating eXpenses . . ... .o uur et ettt e 3,541 15,993 14,626
Operating income (loss) ............ e e (1,532) 100 316
Investment income and other ........ ... ... . .. .. i 57 35 14
Interest expense.............oovviinn. P (512) (1,760) (1,716)
Amortization of deferred financing costs . ...................... e (133) (167) (277)
Other amortization . .................. e — (122) (5)
Incometaxes ........................ ; ................................ (126) — —
Minority interest in (income) loss of joint“\l (S 11110 (3P (6,857) 475 414
Loss before gain (loss) on sale/disposal of ASSELS . .+ vt e (9,103) (1,439) (1,234)
Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of assets .. ....... ... 29,518 (0 (5)
Net income (l0sS) ............ooovenn.. e $20,415  $(1,440) $(1,259)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Net income

BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Distributions
Contributed in Excess of
Capital Income Total
Balance at January 1, 2003 .. ... . $27,901 $ (5,880) $ 22,021
Capital contribUtionS ... ... ..t e e 825 — 825
Distributions paid t0 MEMDBETS . ...ttt — (187) (187)
....................................................... — (1,259) (1,259)
Balance at December 31, 2003 ... .. . 28,726 (7,326) 21,400
Capital contributions . .......... . . 750 — 750
Distributions paid to members ......... ... ... . i —_ (225) (225)
....................................................... — (1,440) (1,440)
Balance at December 31, 2004 .......... e 29,476 (8,991) 20,485
Distributions paid to members . ........ .. ... .. e — (40,230) (40,230)
.................................................... — 20,415 20,415
Balance at December 31,2005 . ... ... ... $29,476 $(28,806) $ 670

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

' (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (10S5) ..ottt $ 20,415  $(1,440) $(1,259)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash flow provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. .. .......... oot 905 3,391 3,381
(Gain) loss on sale/disposal of assets ....... ... ... i, (29,518) 1 5
Minority Interest . ... ...t e 6,857 (475) (414)
Changes in operating assets and 11ab111t1es -
Accounts receivable .. ... ...y 383 478 (59
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ............ . ..., (2,239) (291) (401)
Other ..o 221 2 21
Net cash flow provided by (used in) operating activities..................... (2,976) 1,666 1,274
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘
Changes in restricted cash . ........... Bt et i e (2,523) — —
Improvements and additions to hotel property, net........................ (23) (614)  (1,946)
Net proceeds from sale of assets....... e 94,020 — —
Net cash flow provided by (used in) investing activities ..................... 91,474 (614)  (1,946)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Distributions to members............. bt e e e e (40,230) (225) (187)
Borrowings of term note. .. ... e — — 1,344
Payment of termnote. ... ... .. (36,116)  (1,120) (764)
Payment of deferred financing costs ... ....... ... i (100) (131) —
Net contributions from (distributions to). joint venture partner ............. (13,414) 175 212
Capital contributions. . . ... ..o e — 750 825
Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities ..................... (89,860) (551) 1,430
Net change in cash and cash equivalents. .............. ... ......... .. ... (1,362) 501 758
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .............................. 1,646 1,145 387
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ............... ... ... L, $ 284 S 1646 $ 1,145

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




BOYKIN/AEW, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

1. Background:

In February 1999, Boykin Lodging Company (“Boykin”), a publicly held real estate investment trust (“REIT”),
through its operating partnership Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P., formed a joint venture with AEW Partners III,
L.P. (“AEW”), an investment partnership managed by AEW Capital Management, L.P., a Boston-based real
estate investment firm. The joint venture, Boykin/AEW, LLC (“Boykin/AEW”), is owned 75% by AEW while
Boykin owns the remaining 25% interest.

In August 1999, Boykin/ AEW partnered with a private investor forming Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. (“Boykin
Chicago”), in which Boykin/ AEW has a 75% interest. Boykin Chicago purchased the 421-room Executive Plaza
hotel located in Chicago, Illinois for cash consideration of $48,000. The acquisition was accounted for as a
purchase and was funded with proceeds from a $30,000 secured mortgage note (see Note 3) with the remainder
in cash contributions from the partners. In September 2000, Boykin purchased the remaining 25% ownership
interest in Boykin Chicago from the private investor thereby increasing Boykin’s total ownership interest in the
hotel from 18.75% to 43.75%.

Boykin Chicago entered into a management agreement with Boykin Management Company Limited Liability
Company (“BMC”), an affiliated entity of Boykin, to manage the property.

In 2001, Boykin Chicago commenced a renovation of the hotel’s guestrooms, meeting rooms and food and
beverage facilities. During 2002, Boykin Chicago completed the guestroom portion of the renovation and renamed
the property “Hotel 717 to reflect its new position in the market as a four-star quality independent hotel. The
renovation increased the number of rooms at the property by 33 units, bringing the total number of rooms to 454.
The remaining portions of the renovation were completed in 2003.

In March 2005, Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. sold Hotel 71 to an unrelated third party for a price of $95,050. A
portion of the net proceeds from the sale was used to repay the outstanding balance on the mortgage for which
the property served as collateral; the remainder will be, following the satisfaction of all outstanding obligations of
the joint venture, distributed to the members of Boykin Chicago, L.L.C. The Boykin/ AEW venture and Boykin
Chicago, L.L.C. will be dissolved following satisfaction of all outstanding obligations of the entities.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Principles of Consolidation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Boykin/ AEW include
Boykin/AEW, Boykin Chicago and its wholly-owned TRS, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. All material intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated. The results of operations contained within the consolidated
financial statements reflect all costs of Boykin/ AEW doing business.

Investment in Hotel Property — Hotel property is stated at cost and is depreciated using the straight-line method
over estimated useful lives ranging from ten to 30 years for building and improvements and three to ten years for
furniture and equipment.

Investment in the hotel property as of December 31, 2004 consisted of the following:

2004

Land . .o e e $ 9,100
Buildings and improvements . ... ... ... ... 58,387
Furniture and equipment .. ... ... i P 7,423
CONSITUCTON 1M PIOZTESS . « ¢ v v vttt et e e e e n e e e e e e e e e r e e e e e e e et e 250
75,160

Less accumulated depreciation . ... ... ... it e (11,489)

TOtal . o e $ 63,671




Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and in banks, plus short-
term investments with an original maturiuty of three months or less.

Restricted Cash - Restricted cash consists of cash held in reserves by the title agent involved in the sale of the
property related to the settlement of outstanding liens and obligations of the joint ventures.

|
Inventories - Inventories consisting primarily of food and beverages and gift store merchandise are stated at the
lower of first-in, first-out cost or market.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts recervable consisting primarily of hotel guest receivables, is stated at fair value.
Bad debt expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was 36, $13 and $12, respectively.

Deferved Expenses — Net ~ Included in deferred expenses at December 31, 2004 were the following:

2004
Financing costs...................... [ $130
Accumulated amortization ............ ........................................................ (97)
Total o $ 33

Deferred financing costs of the mortgage note were being amortized over the initial term of the related credit
agreement excluding any available extensron terms. In 2005, additional financing costs amounted to $100.
Minority Interest - Minority interest in joint venture represents Boykin's direct 25% ownership in Boykin Chicago.
Income and losses are allocated to minority interest based upon the joint venture partner’s percentage ownership |
throughout the period as defined in the joint venture agreement.

Hotel Revenues - Hotel revenues including room, food, beverage and other hotel revenues are recognized as the
related services are delivered. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed and an allowarnce for potential credit
losses is provided against the portion of accounts receivable that is estimated to be uncollectible.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Farr value is determined by using available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies. Boylcm Chicago’s principal financial instruments are cash, cash equivalents,
restricted cash, accounts receivable and the mortgage note payable. Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and
accounts receivable, due to their short maturities, are carried at amounts which reasonably approx1mate fair value.
The mortgage note payable (see Note 3) bore interest at variable market rates and its carrying value
approximated market value at December 31, 2004. In 2005, a portion of the net proceeds from the sale were used

" to pay the outstanding balance on the mortgage for which the property served as collateral.

Income Taxes - As Boykin/ AEW and Boykin Chicago are limited liability companies, no related provision has
been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for income taxes for these entities since these
taxes are the responsibility of the members. Upon formation on July 1, 2001, the TRS became subject to federal,
state and local income taxes. The TRS accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accountrng Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. During 2005 and 2004, the
TRS recorded income as a result of forgrveness of certain obligations in anticipation of the sale of the hotel,
resulting in taxable income.

New Accounting Pronouncements - There are no new accounting pronouncements which are expected to be
applicable to Boykin/ AEW.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

3. Mortgage Note Payable:

In 2001, Boykin Chicago obtained a $38, 000 mortgage note from Corus Bank, N.A. (“Corus™) to refinance the
initial $30,000 note obtained for the acqursr'gron of the hotel and to provide $8,000 of funding related to the
renovation of the hotel. Corus advanced $30,000 upon closing of the loan. An additional $6,656 was advanced
during 2002, and the remaining $1,344 was funded in 2003. The loan had an original maturity date of March
2004 and contained two one-year extension c‘gptions. In 2004 and 2005, Boykin Chicago exercised each of the
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available options to extend the maturity date by one year. The loan was secured by the hotel property and bore
interest at a rate that fluctuates at LIBOR plus 3.25%. Principal payments commenced in April 2003 based upon
a twenty-two year amortization schedule from the origination of the note. The mortgage loan agreement contained
certain financial reporting covenants and Boykin Chicago was in compliance with such covenants as of

December 31, 2004. In 2005, a portion of the net proceeds from the sale of the hotel were used to repay the
outstanding balance on the mortgage.

4. Percentage Lease Agreements:

Effective October 1, 2003, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. subleased space to MRG Enterprises, L.L.C. (“MRG”)
to operate a restaurant within Hotel 71. The lease had an initial term of five years with three five year options to
renew, subject to earlier termination in accordance with certain provisions. The rent due under the percentage
lease agreement was the greater of minimum rent, as defined, or percentage rent. Percentage rent applicable to
banquet, catering and all other gross sales was calculated by multiplying fixed percentages by the total amounts of
such revenues over specified threshold amounts. Percentage lease revenues to 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. was
$216 and $159 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, of which none was in excess of
minimum rent. The lease agreement also required reimbursements by MRG of certain expenses incurred by both
71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. and Boykin Chicago. Reimbursements for expenses received by Bovkin Chicago and
the hotel for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $119 and $26, respectively. Percentage lease
revenues and reimbursements for expenses were included in other income.

MRG was obligated under the lease to complete a build-out of the restaurant space. In September 2004, MRG
filed for bankruptcy protection. Several of the contractors and the architect for the improvement of MRG’s leased
premises were not paid in full by MRG prior to its filing for bankruptcy; therefore, mechanics liens were filed
against the property. The total of the mechanics liens outstanding as of December 31, 2005 approximated $1,580.
As a result, if the liens prove valid, are properly perfected, and are not corrected through MRG’s bankruptcy
proceedings, the ultimate responsibility for the outstanding liens may be that of 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc.

In May 2003, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. subleased space to Ampco System Parking to operate a parking garage.
The lease has a term of five years. The rent due under the percentage lease agreement is base rent plus
percentage rent. Percentage rent applicable to gross parking receipts, as defined, is calculated by multiplying fixed
percentages by the total amounts of such revenues over specified threshold amounts. Percentage lease revenues to
71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. was $35, $141 and $73 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, of which none was in excess of minimum rent.

Percentage lease revenues are reflected within other hotel revenues in the financial statements.

5. Related Party Transactions:

BMC is owned 53.8% by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Boykin. Pursuant to the management
agreement entered into effective July 1, 2001, Boykin Chicago paid BMC management fees of $60, $483 and
$446 during 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Pursuant to the operating agreements of Boykin/AEW and Boykin Chicago, asset management fees of $49, $196
and $191 were paid to Boykin for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for its role as
the operating member. These fees are calculated based upon factors applied to aggregate contributions made by
the members, as defined in the agreements.

There were outstanding payables to Boykin of $26 and $25 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
primarily related to asset management fees. At December 31, 2004, 71 E. Wacker Leasing, Inc. had outstanding
payables to BMC of $5 primarily related to management fees and reimbursements of expenses on behalf of the
hotel.

6. Statements of Cash Flows, Supplemental Disclosures:

Interest paid during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $512, $1,902 and $1,737
respectively. Federal income taxes paid during the year ended December 31, 2005 totaled $128.
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BOYKIN/AEW, LLC

SCHEDULE I — REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005
(IN THOUSANDS)

Costs Capitalized Gross Amounts . .
Sabsequent to at Which Carried Accumulated Life on Which
Initial Cost " Acquisition at Close of Period Depreciation Net Book Depreciation in
. B and  Value Land and Statement of
Buildings and Building and Building and Total Improvements  Buildings and Date of Date of Operations is
Description Ei b Land  lImpr Land p! Land  Imp {0 ) Improvements  Construction  Acquisition Computed
Hote! 71, Chicago, Illinois - § - $§ — § —- 35 — 5§ - 5 - 5 — § — § —

(a) Reconciliation of Gross Amounts of Land, Buildings and Improvements

Balance as of December 31, 2004 $67,487
Disposals (67,497)
Improvements and other additions 10
Balance as of December 31, 2005 $ -
(b) Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciatioﬁ of Buildings and Improvements
Balance at December 31, 2004 ‘ $ 8,779
Disposals (9,295)
Depreciation expense 516

Balance at December 31, 2005

@




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

March 15, 2006 BOYKIN LODGING COMPANY

By: /s/ Robert W. Boykin

Robert W. Boykin
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
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- EXHIBIT INDEX

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatron as amended

Code of Regulations \»

Specimen Share Certificate \

Dividend Reinvestment and Optional Share Purchase Plan

Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated asll of May 25, 1999 between Boykin Lodging Company and National City Bank as rights
agent |

Amendment to Shareholder Rights Agreement dated as of December 31, 2001

Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P.

Form of Registration Rights Agreement |

Long-Term Incentive Plan* :

Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan

Employment Agreement between the Company and Robert W. Boykin*

Form of Percentage Lease

Intercompany Convertible Note

Agreements with General Partners of the Contributed Partnerships

Form of Noncompetition Agreement “

Alignment of Interests Agreement

Description of Employment Arrangement between the Company and Richard C. Conti*

Limited Liability Company Agreement of Boykin/ AEW LLC dated as of February 1, 1999

Stock Purchase Option Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company, Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P. and AEW Partners 111,
L.P. dated as of February 1, 1999 ;

Warrant to Purchase Class A Cumulative!Preferred Stock, Series 1999-A of Boykin Lodging Company dated as of February 1, 1999
Registration Rights Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company and AEW Partners 111, L.P. dated as of February 1, 1999
Master Contribution Agreement betweenr‘BMC JABO LLC, the Company and the Partnership dated as of December 31, 2001
Form of Hotel Management Agreement*;

Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and JABO LLC dated January 1, 2002

Description of Employment Arrangemenf‘ between the Company and Shereen P. Jones*

Hotel Purchase and Sale Agreement; Hofel 71 Chicago, Illinois, By and Between Boykin Chicago L.L.C., as Seller and the Falor
Companies, Inc., as Purchaser i

Modification Letter - Stock Purchase Option Agreement by and among Boykin Lodging Company, Boykin Hotel Properties, L.P.
and AEW Partners 111, L.P. dated as of February 1, 1999

Modification of Employment Agreement between the Company and Robert W. Boykin*

Boykin Lodging Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan*

Second Amendment to Employment Agréement between the Company and Robert W, Boykin*

Amended and Restated COO Severance Plan*

Amended and Restated CFO/CIO Severance Plan*

Amended and Restated Key Employee Séverance Plan (Sr. Vice Presidents and Vice Presidents)*

Statement re Computation of Ratios ‘

Letter of Deloitte & Touche LLP requrred by Item 304 of Regulation S-K

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Pubhc Accounting Firm

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a),;‘;in Accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), in Accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectron 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Scctron 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
i

(a) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999.

(b) Incorporated by reference from Amendment ﬁo. 3 to Boykin’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (Registration No. 333-6341)
(the “Form S-11") filed on October 24, 1996. Each of the above exhibits has the same exhibit number in the Form S-11.

(c) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.

d) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Forrn 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.

(e) Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 1 from Boykin’s Registration Statement on Form §-A filed on June 10, 1999.

) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on January 14, 2002.

i

(g) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2004.
(h) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

|

) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.
|

(k) Incorporated by reference from Boykin’s Formi 8-K filed on May 26, 2005.

0] Incorporated by reference from Boykin's Form 8-K filed on June 7, 2005.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.




CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS

As required by the New York Stock Exchange listing rules, our Chief Executive Officer certified to
the New York Stock Exchange on June 22, 2005, that he was not aware of any violation by the
company of the New York Stock Exchange listing standards as of that date. In addition, our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have provided certifications with respect to the
company’s public disclosures as required under Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 13a-14{b) of the Securities
Exchange Act, which certifications were either furnished or filed as Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, 32.1, and
32.2 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2005 filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

OTHER INFORMATION

Any shareholder who would like a copy of the company’s exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K
for fiscal year 2005 may obtain them by addressing a request to Investor Relations, Boykin lodging
Company, 45 West Prospect Avenue, Suite 1500, Cleveland, Ohio 44115. Copies will be provided upon
payment of a specified fee limited to the company’s reasonable expenses of providing the copies.
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Robert W. Boykin

Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer,
Boykin Lodging Company

Albert T. Adams **
Partner, Baker. & Hostetler LLP
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Lee C. Howley, Jr.
Owner and President,
Howley & Company

James B. Meathe >4
Managing Partner,
Walloon Ventures

Mark J. Nasca **
Senior Vice President and Principal,
JDf Realty, LLC;
Chairman, Village Capital Corporation

William H. Schecter ">
Chairman, National City Equity Partners;
Senior Vice President,
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Retired Partner,
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‘ Richard C. Conti
President and
Chief Operating Officer
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Executive Vice President,
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Acquisitions

Andrew C. Alexander
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General Counsel and Secretary
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Vice President and Controller
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* All information as of Aprif 24, 2006.
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Form 10-K

Copies of any financial report or
other information filed by

Boykin Lodging Company with the
SEC, including the 2005

Form 10-K, may be obtained
without charge through our
website or by writing or calling
our corporate office listed below.
Just ask for Investor Relations.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Office

Boykin Lodging Company

45 West Prospect Avenue, Suite 1500
Clevelond, Ohio 44115

Phone: 216-430-1200

fox: 216-430-1201

Share Listing

New York Stock Exchange Symbols:
Common: BOY

Preferred Depositary: BOY PrA

Independent Accountant
Grani Thornfon LLP
Cleveland, Ohio

Legal Counsel
Boker & Hostetler LLP
Claveland, Ohio

Transfer Agent and Registrar
National City Bank
Cleveland, Ohio

Visit Qur World Wide Website
Look for Boykin Lodging Compony
on the World Wide Web at
www.boykinlodging.com

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report contains statements that constitute “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of federal securities law, including statements concerning our intent, belief or current
expectations or those of our directors or officers with respect to our outlook for 2006 and
beyond; leasing, management or performance of the hotels; plans for expansion, conversion

or renovation of the hotels; adequacy of reserves for renovation and refurbishment; financing
plans; continued qualification as a REIT under applicable tax laws, policies regarding investments,
acquisitions, dispositions, financings, conflicts of interest and other matters; national and
international economic, political or market conditions; and trends affecting our or any hotel’s
finoncial condition or results of operations.

You are cautioned that any such forward-looking statement is not o guarantee of future
performance and involves risk and uncertainties, and that actual results may differ materially
from those in the forward-looking statement as a result of various factors. These facfors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, among other
factors, financial performance, real estate conditions, execution of hotel acquisition or disposition
programs, change in local or national economic conditions and their impact on the occupancy
of our hotels, war, terrorism, hurricanes, changes in interest rates, changes in the local or
national supply and construction of new hotels, changes in profitability and margin and the
financial condition of our operators and lessee, and other similar variables. The information
contained in this annual report and in our periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission also identify important factors that could cause such differences.



Doubletree Portland,
Lloyd Center
Portland, Oregon

476 Rooms
503-281-6111

Doubletree Sacramento
Sacramento, California
448 Rooms
916-929-8855

Doubletree Omaha Downtown
Omaha, Nebraska

414 Rooms

402-346-7600

Doubletree Hotel &
Executive Meeting Center-
Berkeley Marina :
Berkeley, California

369 Rooms

510-548-7920

Doubletree Boise Riverside
Boise, Idaho

304 Rooms

208-343-1871

HOTEL AND

Doubletree Colorado Springs
Colorado Springs, Colorado
299 Rooms

719-576-8900

Doubletree San Antonio
San Anfonio, Texas

290 Rooms
210-366-2424

Cleveland Airport Marrioft

" | Cleveland, Ohio

375 Rooms
216-252-5333

Buffalo Marriott
Buffalo, New York
356 Rooms
716-689-6900

Columbus North Marrioft
Columbus, Ohio
300 Rooms

1614-885-1885

Meadowlands-Lyndhurst
Courtyard by Marriott
Lyndhurst, New Jersey

227 Rooms

201-896-6666

'hgh Point Radisson
ngh Point, North Carolina
25 1 Rooms
336-889-8888 '

Radisson Suite Beach Resort-
/Marco Island

Mareo Island, Florida -

233 Rooms

%39-394-4100

l

-Radisson Hotel & Suites

Kansas City-City Center
Kansas City, Missouri

388 Rooms

3 16-474-6664

Holiday Inn Crabtree
Ra/e:gh North Carolina
176 Rooms

91 9.782-8600

Emboassy Suites Southfield
Soufhﬁeld Michigan

239 Rooms

248 350-2000

Melbourne Hilton Oceanfront
Melbourne, Florida

118 Rooms

321-777-5000

Best Western Fort Myers
Island Gateway Hotel
Ft. Myers, Florida

157 Rooms
239-466-1200

Melbourne Suites Beach Resort
Melbourne, Florida

208 Rooms

321-723-4222

Pink Shell Beach Resort & Spa

Ft. Myers Beach, Florida
178 Rooms
239-463-6181

Banana Bay Resort & Marina- Marafhon

- Marathon, Florida

65 Rooms
305-743-3500
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